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Man Sang International Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the "Group”) have two existing lines of business: (i)
purchasing, processing, designing, production and wholesale distribution
of pearls and jewellery (the “Pearls and Jewellery Segment”); and (ii)
property development and investment (the “Property Segment”). The
shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 1997 under the stock code of 938.

The Group is one of the world’s largest merchants, purchasers and
processors of pearls. The processing and production of pearls and
jewellery are conducted at the Group's production facilities, Man Sang
Industrial City, which is located in Shenzhen, the People Republic of
China (the “PRC"). There are 27 blocks of buildings with total gross floor
area of approximately 76,000 square meters within Man Sang Industrial
City.

With the Group’s extensive experience in the pearl business gained
over the past years, the Group has, together with a few other major
pearls and jewellery companies in the PRC, developed a large-scale
international pearls and jewellery trading platform, which is known as
China Pearls and Jewellery City (“CP&J City”) and is located in zhuji of
Zhejiang, the PRC, since 2006. CP&J City is designed to be the world’s
largest pearls and jewellery trading platform which provides facilities
for processing, manufacturing, research and development, and trading
of pearls and jewellery products, as well as related supporting services
including logistics, electronic commerce, exhibition and convention,
accommodation, catering and entertainment.

During the year, the Group completed a transaction to further acquire
3.85% equity interests in CP&J City from a minority shareholder which
has increased the Group’s equity interests in CP&J City from 62% to
65.85%. With the proven track record of CP&J City in the past years, it
is expected that such acquisition will have positive effect to the future
prospect of the Group.

The Group will continue to explore new business opportunities so arising

in order to maximise shareholders’ value in the coming future, in both
the Pearls and Jewellery Segment and the Property Segment.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
o 5 4 22

KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

EHBRE
Year ended 31 March
HE3IAMMALEE
Consolidated Income Statement mEWER 2014 2013 Change
20145 20134 HE %
Revenue (HK$'000) WA (FE7T) 351,380 461,185 (109,805) -23.8%
Gross profit (HK$'000) EM(FAET) 145,277 151,488 6,211) -4.1%
Profit before income tax (HK$'000) BREFEHAIRF (F87T) 137,376 112,077 25,299 +22.6%
Profit for the year (HK$'000) REFRAM(FHET) 85,596 64,267 21,329 +33.2%
Profit attributable to the equity holders  Zx /2 T A% 38 15 3% 7]
of the Company (HK$'000) (F#m) 68,463 48,244 20,219 +41.9%
Basic earnings per share (HK cent) BRREAREF B) 5.35 3.78 1.57 +41.5%
Diluted earnings per share (HK cent) ERRESERT OBL) 5.29 3.78 1.51 +39.9%
As at 31 March
M3A31H
consolidated Balance Sheet HEEEAGR 2014 2013 Change
2014 & 20134 -3 %
Net assets (HK$'000) BEFE(TET) 1,073,708 1,002,842 70,866 +7.1%
Cash and cash equivalents (HK$'000) RE&RZERIEL (F#Hx) 392,355 440,770 (48,415) -11.0%
Borrowings (HK$'000) fEE(THT) 301,000 327,600 (26,600) -8.1%
Shareholders’ equity (HK$'000) R (FAT) 927,636 863,094 64,542 +7.5%
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
FEMBHLR
2014 2013 Change
2014 % 20134 b))
Gross profit margin® ES |y 41.3% 32.8% +8.5 percentage points
+8.5 18 E 7 Bh
Return on equity? RRESEHR 7.4% 5.6% +1.8 percentage points
+1.818E 7 2h
Current ratio (times)® LR (Z)e 14 1.3
Gearing ratio® BEXRGELE® 0.28 0.33
(1) Gross profit margin represents gross profit divided by revenue of the (1 EFRBEREEEFRRAEA
Group.
(2)  Return on equity is defined as the ratio of profit attributable to equity 2 BREESEFHREARBREENLGFR
holders of the Company to total equity attributable to equity holders of the AR BIRR SR AL B s o
company.
(3)  Current ratio is defined as the ratio of total current assets to total current Q) mEBLEERDEERERATBAL
liabilities. 1% o
(4)  Gearing ratio represents total borrowings, including current and non- 4 BXRABEHXEGEHTE(BERBK
current portion, divided by total equity. SEMBNEL ) BR A KRR o

RABBRABRIDAF « —F—MFEFH



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
o 05k

All Segments FiE 2 &

(1) Revenue by business segment W A 23§ 5 282 #1 (HK$'000 758 7T)

268,473

261,411

199,774

82,907
e
2014 2013 2014 2013
Pearls and Jewellery Segment Property Segment
$23737S- P! LI EZ

All Segments i 5 2f

(2) Revenue by geographical segment W A 2 & 2 #7 (HK$'000 T35 7T)

196,641

109,435 106,267

H 67,472
3 H 49,768 22612

21,317 26,487 , ' s .
- 8,706
- 7,484

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Hong Kong Mainland China Europe North America Other Asian Countries Other

N (excluding Hong Kong) B JEZEMN Hib T MBER Hith

PEIA
(TBIEEE)

Pearls and Jewellery Segment ¥ EKEKE 5 2B
(3) Revenue by Product W A2 E REE D7 (HK$'000 Ti57T)

163,548 176,000

81,305 73,349
u 23,620
5 o 12,062
—
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Saltwater Pearls Freshwater Pearls Jewellery
KB TR KL TR e
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
o 05 4k

Pearls and Jewellery Segment ¥ ERZRE 5 2B

(4) Revenue by geographical segment W A 1zt & 5 #7 (HK$'000 T87T)

106,267

83,576
79,800
S
49,768
30,375

T 32900
17,070 2330 22712

— . 2 Y " 7,484 8706

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Hong Kong Mainland China Europe North America Other Asian Countries Other
A (excluding Hong Kong) BUM LM H AR Hith
R E A
(TEEEE)

Property Segment #)% 5 B

(5) Revenue by business sector U A 3z 5 2 #T (HK$'000 T3 7T)

186,363

67,467
15,440 13,411
—— ——
2014 2013 2014 2013
China Pearls & Jewellery City Other Properties in the PRC & HK
@B R AR B REE MR
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR 2013/2014
2013/2014 4 K2

25 April 2013-2 May 2013 2013%F 4 A25B 220135 A2H
Participated in Baselworld 2013 — World Watch & Jewellery Show SEMNERKER 2013

10-13 May 2013 2013%F5H10B =13 H
Participated in Jewelry Shanghai 2013 2HE013 LERBKEENRESD
31 May 2013-3 June 2013 2013%F5A31BE2013F 6 A3 H
Participated in JCK Show — Las Vegas, the United States 20 ICKEB N AT E N E R
20-23 June 2013 2013%F 6 A20B 223 H
Participated in June Hong Kong Jewellery & Gem Fair SENAEBUEEMREES

20 August 2013 20138 H20H

2013 Annual General Meeting at The Royal Garden EwEEAR0I3FERRBEFAS
11-17 September 2013 2013%F9A1MB=17H
Participated in September Hong Kong Jewellery & Gem Fair SBENAEEUEEHMREES

Man Sang Group

Photo taken in Hong Kong International Jewellery Show
HEREBREKRER
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR 2013/2014

Photo taken in Hong Kong International Jewellery Show
HEREAERKRER

28 November 2013-1 December 2013
Participated in Hong Kong International Jewelry Manufacturers’ Show

22-25 January 2014
Participated in the 24th International Jewellery Show in Tokyo

28 February 2014

Completion of the acquisition of 3.85% of the issued share capital of
China Pearls and Jewellery City Holdings Limited

3-7 March 2014
Participated in Hong Kong International Jewellery Show

2013/2014 45 KB 2

2013 11 A28 BZE 2013412 818
SEEERRKERIRES

2014F 1A 228 =250
SHEARNRRE 24 [EFRIKE R

20142 A28 H
e EFEERERIERABRARIEET
P AN 3.85%

20143 A3RE7H
SHEBBBERRER
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
B 28

On behalf of the board of directors, | am pleased to present the results
of Man Sang International Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2014 (“"FY14").

PERFORMANCE

The Group recorded profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$68.5 million and basic earnings per share of 5.35 HK cents in FY14,
as compared to a profit of HK$48.2 million and basic earnings per share
of 3.78 HK cents for the year ended 31 March 2013 (“FY13").

The Group's revenue decreased by HK$109.8 million or 23.8% from
HK$461.2 million in FY13 to HK$351.4 million in FY14, while the gross
profit decreased by HK$6.2 million or 4.1% from HK$151.5 million in FY13
to HK$145.3 million in FY14.

During the past financial year, the global economy continued to be
influenced by various political and economic uncertainties which
adversely affected the retail industry as a whole. Consumer confidence
remained weak in Europe, the largest market for the Group’s pearls
and jewellery business, which was somewhat offset by a modest
improvement in the United States. Leveraging its competitive strengths
and stringent cost control measures, the Group was able to maintain a
steady business performance.

Man Sang International Limited e Annual Report 2014

AANBURREZGZHRREBREGRAA
(IRRrED) REMBAR(SHE I RER])E
E2014F3 AN A LEFE(T2014FHHEFE )
HIRAE -

FEXRH

R2MUMFEHREERN NEBBRE AR A
% B8 FE 1 3 T 68,500,000 T © BREARA
5357l - MBE2013FE3A318 ILEE
([2013 F AR [Z |) BIJ§%15 % %1 48,200,000 7
TN EREREF 378781 -

7N [E WA B 2013 4 B R F JE 461,200,000 78
TCB% 2= 2014 4 B R €F & 351,400,000 7T+
18 % 109,800,000 8 7L 8% 23.8% * E B #2013
£F B B F Z 151,500,000 7 7T %k &= 2014 4 B Y
£F JE 145,300,0007% 7T * 8 18 4 6,200,000 7% 7T
4.1% °

BE—F  EREBEEEIBRRERTISH
ERIARREMNE  SEBTETEHR
AEFE KEDRRENLHATE — B
M BBEEEMDANER - B TISRE AR
EMAMEE - BREAG 2 HFEE LB
ARSI - REXRBEURFRRETF



PROSPECTS

We continue our focus on the two established businesses in the pearls
and jewellery and property segments. In our pearls and jewellery
business, we have actively participated in a number of leading trade
shows over the world and succeeded in diversifying our clientele. To
reinforce our ODM business, we have further strengthened our design
and engineering capability which will significantly improve efficiency in
technical planning and production processes.

Regarding the property segment, two residential apartments and a
commercial complex in CP&J City are expected to be completed in
December 2014 and March 2015 respectively. We are also planning to
roll out Phase 2 of the development of CP&J City. Currently, we are in
negotiation with the local government about the development plan and
the proposed acquisition. With our well established roadmap, we believe
the future for the Group is promising.

Furthermore, we are also exploring the feasibility of a potential spin-
off and separate listing of our pearls and jewellery segment to focus.
The move enables us to focus more on the two core businesses
independently and more effectively allocate our resources, with an aim
to create maximum return to the shareholders of the Company.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude to
all our shareholders, customers and other business partners for their
long-term attention and support to the Group over the years. | would
also like to thank the senior management team and all staff of the Group
for their dedication and hard work to the Group during the past year.

Cheng Chung Hing
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 May 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PR ik i 5L 5y By

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Man Sang International Limited
(the “Company”) is pleased to report the results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2014 ("FY14"). During FY14, the consolidated profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company was HK$68.5 million (year ended 31 March
2013 ("FY13"): HK$48.2 million), representing an increase of 42.1% as
compared with that in FY13. Basic earnings per share was 5.35 HK cents
(FY13: 3.78 HK cents), representing an increase of 41.5% as compared
with that in FY13.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the global economy continued to be influenced by
different political and economic uncertainties. Notwithstanding this, our
business in pearls and jewellery was maintained steadily during the year
by leveraging our competitive strengths which comprise of close and
stable relationship with customers and suppliers, a vertically integrated
product chain and renowned reputation in the pearls and jewellery
industry.

With our continued effort on cost control measures, we managed to
maintain our profit margin and the competitiveness in the market,
despite the continuous surge in the operating expenses in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") including but not limited to wages and
material costs.

The Group is dedicated to promote our products to our corporate
retailing customers by regularly attending trade shows. During the
year, we have participated in eight trade shows around the world and
achieved successful results in strengthening the relationship with
existing customers and establishing new customers.

The Group has established our own design and engineering team for
the business of jewellery, particularly on ODM basis. A CAD computer
aided team was established to transform the 2-dimensional designs to
3-dimensional digital images. With these 3D digital images, the Group’s
designers and jewellery craftsmen are able to better visualize the final
products and make necessary adjustments. This will enhance the
efficiency of technical planning and production process.

The Group has established a prestigious showroom in our headquarter
in Hong Kong to showcase our products to the customers and sales
directly to high-end boutique retailers and customers from overseas
and Mainland China. The Group has a strategy to build up a stronger
market reputation associated with the high quality, new and fashionable
products and performs internet sales through our online stores at
certain E-commerce platforms.

Man Sang International Limited e Annual Report 2014

MBEE

REBBRBERAGB(ARADESS([ES
€ )MALBARRLEWEBAE (FHE A
EE)EHE2014F3A3NB IEFE (20144
MREE ) 2 %458 - R0UEFHREER -
AR R FE(R 4R A 5 F1) 5 68,500,000 78 7T (&,
ZE2013F3ANBLEFE  ([2013F B F
£ 1) £ 48,200,000/ L) * 2013 FH K FE
FFH421% - BFREREF] A5.35810(2013
FHREE 37881) W2013FHHREE
FFFA1.5% o

E 3 C1)

FR - 2REBEERBBRKBENSFEZ
ERTAERTE - BENL - BIRNIKE
EBBREAFZHFELETRERTP IH
ERZIEMBEZHE HEEELS
EmRIIRERRREEREISSBESFINU
REARFFIZ -

BEREARKMBE([FE]) 2&82HZ (R
EEARNTEREMERA) TE#RA - 8
AEBEF BN D SRR AIE GG - RIS
—EERFERMEHRFET o

AEBBRINEERMANER TEETER
F EREHLEESRE -FR AEEZ
HBEAM A BT HREEHRES &£
MRERAERPZHRREREFPEIBIE L
FRINERIS (A

AEBRE T IREEBR IR R TEEE
RSt R R 8E ODM IR 2 %75 - Bl &
CAD % fisg ¥ B) B 5 - T ik s T B R B 52
BER - BRLEFHEELEEER AKEZR
RN B TIT e B TR B RN M2 MR M IE
HOEZ B - R GBRIT IR B R EE
TRZHE -

AEEEEEEANRTEBES Y HIE
T TEQAESERRERETREE
ARG EEEQTERLES - A%
EEANEE  FEREE L EREALS
ETBLRE  GAAETETHEYAE
MBI T 2 48 L R T



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the property sector, the revenue generated from sales of properties
in the China Pearls and Jewellery City (“CP&J City") decreased as a result
of the completion of residential apartments and factory buildings in FY13
where significant contracted sales were recognised in FY13 and no new
property was completed in FY14. Rental income contributed by CP&J
City continued to grow due to the improvement in rental rates during the
year.

The Group is in the process of completing the construction of two
residential apartments and a commercial complex in CP&J City which
are expected to be completed in December 2014 and March 2015,
respectively. Thereafter, the Group will develop a hotel which represents
the last building construction of phase 1 of the CP&J City, however, the
timing of which has yet to be determined.

Besides, the Group is also planning to roll out phase 2 of the
development of CP&J City. The Group is in the process of negotiating
with the local government about the development plan and the
proposed acquisition is subject to auction/tender processes. It is
preliminarily proposed that phase 2 of CP&J City will comprise residential
apartments, commercial buildings and a market centre, however the
development plan may be amended subject to the finalization of the
negotiation which shall be agreed upon by both the Group and the PRC
local government.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group currently has two major lines of businesses: (i) purchasing,
processing, designing, production and wholesale distribution of pearls
and jewellery (the “Pearl and Jewellery Segment”); and (ii) property
development and investment (the “Property Segment”).

Revenue and Gross Profit
Pearl and Jewellery Segment

Net sales attributable to the Pearl and Jewellery Segment increased
by HK$7.1 million or 2.7% from HK$261.4 million for FY13 to HK$268.5
million for FY14. Such increase was primarily attributable to an increase
in net sales of freshwater pearls and saltwater pearls. Saltwater pearls
contributed HK$81.3 million (FY13: HK$73.3 million) to the Group’s
net sales in FY14, representing an increase of HK$8.0 million from
FY13. Wholesale distribution of jewellery contributed substantially to
the Group’s net sales in FY14 with HK$163.5 million (FY13: HK$176.0
million), representing a decrease of HK$12.5 million from FY13. Such
decrease was mainly due to an increasing competition and adverse
macroeconomic conditions, particularly in Europe.
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Net sales of saltwater pearls and jewellery accounted for 30.3% (FY13:
28.0%) and 60.9% (FY13: 67.3%) of the total net sales, respectively to the
Pearl and Jewellery Segment in FY14.

During the year, net sales in North America increased by HK$12.3 million
or 18.2% to HK$79.8 million, as compared to HK$67.5 million in FY13. Net
sales in Mainland China (including Hong Kong) and other Asian countries
were HK$97.6 million in FY14, representing an increase of 23.5%, as
compared to HK$79.0 million in FY13. Net sales in Europe were HK$83.6
million, representing a decrease of 21.4% as compared to HK$106.3
million in FY13.

Gross profit increased by HK$12.7 million or 15.4% to HK$95.2 million
in FY14 (FY13: HK$82.5 million). The increase was mainly due to an
increase in gross profit margin by 3.9 percentage points during FY14
(FY14: 35.5%; FY13: 31.6%). The increase in gross profit margin was
mainly attributable to the improved production efficiency and the sale of
certain aged inventories which had been fully provided for in prior years.

Property Segment

Revenue from the Property Segment was HK$82.9 million (FY13:
HK$199.8 million) during FY14, which comprised sales of properties of
HK$39.4 million (FY13: HK$159.4 million) and rental income of HK$43.5
million (FY13: HK$40.4 million). CP&J City continues to contribute the
most to the performance in the Property Segment, which accounted for
81.4% (FY13: 93.3%) of total revenue to the Property Segment in FY14.

The revenue from sales of properties mainly represented sales of
residential apartments in CP&J City which were completed in FY13. As a
result of the significant sales of these properties in FY13, revenue from
sales of properties decreased by HK$120.0 million or 75.3% to HK$39.4
million (FY13: HK$159.4 million) in FY14. Rental income increased by
HK$3.1 million or 7.7% to HK$43.5 million (FY13: HK$40.4 million) in FY14
as a result of the upward adjustment in rental rates for the existing
tenants.

Gross profit attributable to the Property Segment decreased by HK$19.0
million or 27.5% to HK$50.0 million (FY13: HK$69.0 million) in FY14 as a
result of the decrease in sales of residential apartments as mentioned
above. The gross profit margin increased by 25.8 percentage points to
60.3% in FY14 from 34.5% in FY13, which was mainly due to a one-off
impairment of certain prepaid land leases of HK$5.7 million in FY13.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Selling and Administrative Expenses (the “S&A
expenses”)

S&A expenses mainly comprised selling expenses of HK$19.2 million
(FY13: HK$17.5 million) and administrative expenses of HK$73.6 million
(FY13: HK$84.9 million). S&A expenses decreased by HK$9.6 million or
9.4% to HK$92.8 million (FY13: HK$102.4 million) in FY14, as a result of
the improvement in cost control effectively implemented by the Group
during the year.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company increased by
HK$20.3 million or 42.1% to HK$68.5 million (FY13: HK$48.2 million) in
FY14.

Material Acquisition

During the year, the Group acquired an additional 3.85% equity interests
in CP&J City together with the related shareholder’s loan in the amount
of HK$9.8 million at a consideration of HK$17.3 million. Subsequent to
this acquisition, the Group increased the equity interest in CP&J City
from 62% to 65.85%. Details of the acquisition are set out in note 41 of
the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s total equity, including non-controlling
interests, was HK$1,073.7 million (2013: HK$1,002.8 million), representing
an increase of 7.1% from last year.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had cash and bank balances of
HK$392.4 million (2013: HK$440.8 million). Cash and bank balances
were mainly denominated in United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars
and Chinese Renminbi. The Group’s working capital or net current
assets were HK$271.5 million (2013: HK$189.0 million). The current ratio,
represented by the current assets divided by the current liabilities, was
1.4 (2013: 1.3).

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s total borrowings, which were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Chinese Renminbi, were
HK$301.0 million (2013: HK$327.6 million) and were interest-bearing. The
Group does not currently use any derivatives to manage interest rate
risk. Gearing ratio, representing total borrowings divided by total equity,
was 0.28 (2013: 0.33).

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had available banking facilities of
HK$243.0 million (2013: HK$289.4 million) with various banks, of which
the unused banking facilities amounted to HK$55.4 million (2013:
HK$109.4 million). With the committed unused banking facilities in
place and available cash and cash equivalents, the Group has adequate
financial resources to meet the anticipated future liquidity requirements
and capital expenditure commitment.

The Group's borrowings and banking facilities were secured by certain
leasehold property and investment properties with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$544.0 million (2013: HK$442.5 million).
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Treasury Policy

The Group principally operates its businesses in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange fluctuations
from various currencies, such as United States dollars and Chinese
Renminbi, which were the major foreign currencies transacted by the
Group during FY13 and FY14.

Since Hong Kong dollars remain pegged to the United States dollars
within a defined range, the Group is not exposed to any significant
foreign exchange risk against the United States dollars. The Group
has subsidiaries operating in Mainland China, in which most of their
transactions, including revenue, expenses and other financing activities,
are denominated in Chinese Renminbi. The Group is not exposed to
any significant foreign exchange transaction risk in relation to Chinese
Renminbi and has not entered into any foreign exchange contract as
hedging measures.

Notwithstanding the above, the Group is subject to foreign currency
risk arising from certain transactions which are dominated in other
currencies, such as Euro. The Group manages its foreign currency risk
against other currencies by closely monitoring the movement of the
foreign currency rates and may use hedging derivative, such as foreign
currency forward contract, to manage its foreign currency risk as
appropriate.

Financial guarantees

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had contingent liabilities of HK$27.4
million (2013: HK$85.3 million) in respect of guaranteeing the mortgage
for certain purchasers of properties in CP&J City under mortgage
collaboration agreements with a bank in the PRC.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had a total workforce of 720 (2013: 914),
of whom 56 (2013: 59) were based in Hong Kong. The total staff cost,
including directors’ emoluments, share options benefit and mandatory
provident fund, was approximately HK$81.5 million (2013: HK$77.9
million). Employees were remunerated on the basis of their performance
and experience. Remuneration packages, including salary and year-end
discretionary bonus, were determined by reference to market conditions
and individual performance.

POTENTIAL SPIN-OFF AND SEPARATE LISTING

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated 17 February
2014 in relation to, among other things, the potential spin-off and
separate listing of the Group's pearl and jewellery business (the “Potential
Spin-Off and Separate Listing”) on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
As at the date of this announcement, preparation for the Potential Spin-
Off and Separate Listing is underway and certain professional parties
have been engaged to explore the feasibility of the Potential Spin-Off
and Separate Listing, however no listing application has been made to
the Stock Exchange. Further announcement(s) setting out the progress
of the Potential Spin-Off and Separate Listing, will be made by the
Company as and when necessary in accordance with the Main Board
Listing Rules.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CHAIRMAN

Mr. CHENG Chung Hing, aged 53, has been an Executive Director and
the Chairman of the Company since 1997 and has been re-designated
as a Non-Executive Director of the Company since 6 October 2009.
He provides leadership to the Company, and, with the support from
other members of the Board, is responsible for the formulation and
development of corporate policies and business strategies, as well as
the overall management of the Group. He was awarded the "Young
Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong 1997" by the Federation of Hong
Kong Industries and the "Distinguished International Entrepreneur of the
Year Award 1997" by San Francisco State University and the “Chinese
Outstanding Entrepreneur Award 2008" by the China Enterprise
Confederation and the China Enterprise Directors Association. He is
currently a member of the Guangxi Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference and the Shenzhen Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, vice chairman of
the China Chamber of International Commerce, honorary life president
of the Hong Kong Gemstone Manufacturers’ Association Limited,
foundation honorary chairman of the Gem and Jewellery Committee of
China General Chamber of Commerce and honorary chairman of the
Zhejiang Pearl Trade Association. He has over 30 years of experience
in pearl and jewellery businesses. Mr. Cheng is currently a co-chairman
and executive director of China South City Holdings Limited (@ company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (stock code: 1668)). Mr. Cheng is the father of Ms. Cheng
Ka Man, Carman and the younger brother of Mr. Cheng Tai Po and Mr.
Cheng Sai.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHENG Tai Po, aged 62, has been an Executive Director and the
Deputy Chairman of the Company since 1997. He is responsible for
the formulation of the Group’s general business models, development
strategies and major issues. Mr. Cheng is a board member of the
Zhanjiang Ocean University, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and
a general committee member of the Hong Kong Jewelry Manufacturers’
Association. He has over 30 years of management experience in
manufacturing, wholesale and distribution businesses. Mr. Cheng is
currently the vice chairman of the board of director of China Metro-Rural
Holdings Limited, a company listed on NYSE MKT (ticker symbol: CNR).
He is also a non-executive director of China South City Holdings Limited
(@ company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1668)). He is the
elder brother of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing and Mr. Cheng Sai and an uncle
of Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman.

Ms. YAN Sau Man, Amy, aged 51, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since August 1997. She, together with other members
of the Board, is responsible for the overall management of the Group
as well as the formulation, development and implementation of the
Group’s corporate policies, business strategies and overall sales and
marketing strategies. Ms. Yan has over 25 years of experience in the
selling and marketing of pearl and she also has extensive experience in
the jewellery business.
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Ms. CHENG Ka Man, Carman, aged 25, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since September 2013. She is primarily
responsible for the execution of the Board’s decision and the overall
management of the Group. She obtained a Master of Philosophy degree
in Real Estate Finance from University of Cambridge in 2012, a Master
of Science degree in Management from Imperial College London in 2011
and a Bachelor of Science degree in Financial and Business Economics
from University of London in 2010. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Cheng
had worked in a leading Asian investment firm. She is the daughter of
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing and a niece of Mr. Cheng Tai Po and Mr. Cheng
Sai.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FUNG Yat Sang, aged 62, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since September 2009. He has over 30 years
of financial management experience and held senior management
positions in various multinational corporations in Hong Kong, Australia,
Thailand and China. Mr. Fung is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in United Kingdom and a
member of the CPA Australia.

Mr. KIU Wai Ming, aged 65, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since September 2004. He has been in the
banking and finance field for over 30 years. He is currently an executive
director and the chief executive officer of Walker Group Holdings Limited
(@ company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1386)). He is also
an independent non-executive director of CCB International (Holdings)
Ltd. Mr. Kiu holds a bachelor’s degree in economics and marketing from
Louisiana State University, the United States of America.

Mr. LAU Chi Wah, Alex, aged 50, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since September 2004. Mr. Lau is
a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. He holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting from University of
East Anglia, United Kingdom. Mr. Lau manages initial public offerings
and fund-raising exercises and advises listed companies on mergers and
acquisitions, takeovers, buyouts and other corporate transactions. He
has over 25 years of experience in corporate finance and accounting. He
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of China Conch
Venture Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 586)) with effect from 3 December 2013.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEUNG Alex, aged 35, is the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of the Group. He obtained his Bachelor of commerce degree
from University of Auckland, New Zealand in 2000. Mr. Leung had
worked in two international accounting firms in Hong Kong before
joining the Group in February 2012. He is responsible for the financial
and accounting management, corporate governance affairs and merger
and acquisition activities of the Group. Mr. Leung is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
the CPA Australia. He has more than 14 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and corporate management.

Mr. CHENG Sai, aged 57, is the General Manager of Man Hing Industry
Development (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“Man Hing"). He is responsible for
the overall operations of Man Hing. Mr. Cheng has over 20 years of
experience in pearl business. He is the brother of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing
and Mr. Cheng Tai Po and an uncle of Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Man Sang International Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) recognises the importance of achieving the
highest standard of corporate governance consistent with the needs
and requirements of its businesses and the best interest of all of its
stakeholders, and the board of directors (the ‘Board”) is fully committed
to doing so. The Board believes that high standards of corporate
governance provide a framework and solid foundation for the Group to
manage business risks, enhance transparency, achieve high standard of
accountability and protect stakeholders’ interests.

The Group has adopted a corporate governance statement of policy
which provides guidance on the application of the corporate governance
principles on the Group, with reference to the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

According to the code provision A.4.1 as set out in the CG Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. Although all three Independent Non-Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau Chi Wah,
Alex have not been appointed for a specific term, they will all retire at
the annual general meeting at least once every three years and will be
eligible for re-election in accordance with the CG Code. In the opinion
of the Directors, the retirement of each Non-Executive Director at the
annual general meeting at least once every three years shall have the
same effect of appointing them with a specific term of three years.

Save as the deviation from the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code as
mentioned above, in the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Director(s)”), the Company has complied with all code provisions as
set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2014 and,
where appropriate, the applicable recommended best practices of the
CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, upon
specific enquiries made by the Company, that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 31 March 2014. To ensure Directors’ dealings in the securities of
the Company (the “Securities”) are conducted in accordance with the
Model Code and securities code of the Company, a Director is required
to notify the Chairman or the Deputy Chairman in writing and obtain a
written acknowledgement from the Chairman or the Deputy Chairman
prior to any dealings in the Securities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group,
which includes leadership and control of the Company and oversees
the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk
management and performances. The management team is delegated
with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-
day management of the Group. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management include (1) the
preparation of interim and annual reports and announcements for the
Board'’s approval before publishing; (2) implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk management procedures; and (3)
compliance with relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and
rules and regulations. It is the responsibility of the Board to determine
the appropriate corporate governance practices applicable to the
Company’s circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures are
in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance objectives.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the business requirements and objectives
of the Group and for the exercise of independent judgement. Each
Director with various professional qualification, experience and related
financial management expertise have contributed to the effective
direction of the Company and provided adequate checks and balances
to safeguard to the interests of both the Group and the shareholders.
Hence, the Board believes that the current Board composition satisfy the
balance of expertise, skills and experience to the corporate governance
requirements of the Group as well as the ongoing development and
management of its business activities.

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Cheng Tai Po (Deputy Chairman), Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy and Ms. Cheng
Ka Man, Carman, one Non-Executive Director, Mr. Cheng Chung Hing
(Chairman) and three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex.

On 11 July 2013, Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas resigned as a Non-Executive
Director of the Company to pursue his personal businesses.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 19 to 20 of this annual report.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Company, and to review and
approve the Company's interim and annual results. During the year, four
Board meetings were held and the attendance of each Director at the
Board meetings is set out in the section headed “Board and Committees
Meetings” of this Report.
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Regular Board meetings for each year are scheduled in advance to
facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. All Directors are given
an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for
meetings to comply with all applicable rules and regulations. The agenda
and the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to Directors
at least three days before the intended date of a Board meeting. Draft
minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to Directors for their
comment before being tabled at the next Board meeting for approval. All
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, all Directors appointed to fill
a causal vacancy shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the
meeting. At each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

Save for the family relationships disclosed in the Profile of Directors and
Senior Management set out on pages 19 to 20 of this annual report, the
Directors do not have material financial, business or other relationships
with one another.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO of the Group are clearly defined
and segregated to ensure independence and proper checks and
balances. The Chairman focuses on the business strategy and direction
of the Company and has executive responsibilities, provides leadership
for the Board and ensures proper and effective functioning of the Board
in discharging of its responsibilities. The CEQ is accountable to the Board
for the overall implementation of the Company’s strategies and the co-
ordination of overall business operations.

There is currently no officer carrying the title of CEO up to the date of
this annual report. In the absence of the CEO, the duties of the CEO have
been/will continue to be undertaken by other executive members of the
Board, namely Mr. Cheng Tai Po, Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy and Ms. Cheng
Ka Man, Carman, therefore, in the opinion of the Directors, the roles
of the Chairman and the CEQO have been/will continue to be properly
segregated in the absence of an officer carrying the title of CEO.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

According to the code provision A.4.1 as set out in the CG Code,
non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election. Although all three Independent Non-Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau Chi Wah,
Alex have not been appointed for a specific term, they will all retire at
the annual general meeting at least once every three years and will be
eligible for re-election in accordance with the CG Code. In the opinion
of the Directors, the retirement of each Non-Executive Director at the
annual general meeting at least once every three years shall have the
same effect of appointing them with a specific term of three years.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1),
3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company has received
confirmation of independence from all three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau Chi
Wah, Alex in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex and Mr. Kiu Wai Ming have served the Board of
the Company for more than nine years. They have clearly demonstrated
their willingness to exercise independent judgement and to provide
objective challenges to the management. There is no evidence that
length of tenure is having an adverse impact on their independence. The
Board therefore considers that Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex and Mr. Kiu Wai
Ming remain independent, notwithstanding the length of their tenure.

The Board has reviewed the independence of all Independent Non-
Executive Directors and concluded that all of them are independent
within the definition of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is
not aware of the occurrence of any events which would cause it to
believe that the independence of any of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors has been impaired up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Upon appointing a new Director, each new Director receives an
induction package covering business operations, policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware
of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.

The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive amendments to
or updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition,
the Company encourages the Directors to enrol in a wide range of
professional development courses and seminars relating to the Listing
Rules, Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and corporate governance
practices so that they can continuously improve their relevant
knowledge and skills. The Company has organised a seminar in
February 2014 on updated laws and regulations. The Company has also
provided reading materials to all Directors to develop and refresh their
professional knowledge.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) on 22
August 2013 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diversed Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of the Company’s
strategic objectives and sustainable development.

Man Sang International Limited e Annual Report 2014

BYFATES R YM

ARG BB EWARRIES100) - 3.10Q2) &
310ABZIBE - ARFEEELH=ZBY
EMITES(ANGRESRE  BHEBLEERE
BELE)RE ETARBEIIEEL 2B
F DR o

EERELBRBEERBATNESTSAN
F o WENRBBM RREETELHEOE
B YABEETREBRELN - B IAER
BNEHREHREBEIEBR TN E -
- EFERA - TwEHRE  JIEELLE
KREHRPAREDRBIANL °

EEeCMAEBEFMITESRNE L
VRAEEFDE ETRAMREZBLAL
AN BEARERH  EFSWENTDH
EEAEE - BEERETA OB IERTT
BEE7BUMEE-

EEABRSEERRE

RETHESRR  BRFESHURI —MOFE
ZABER - MEARAEBEE  BRKLIE
FoARERESEN—K ZEEREEEET:
PAREIR BB 1 AR H 7 BT R Al R Ho At AR R B
BEERTHEE -

ARRBFERESRMMERER - KRR
EZERTREFEM © WO ARRIBEES
SEZIFE FHRA - BRRRGRE REXE
AERABNEXERRELNFE - AR
BT FHE G E B AR A o 2014 4F 2
A ARBBERITE - KRB AR
KRR & ER - AR MR RESRHN
BIRER B - ARRA MBS 2 HRAE

ETERESTILRE

EZ22R2013F8A2ERMNEZENE
ZRACBER (K] ERIHEETGRER
EFEERBZITEMERMA T -

ARARRALEREBZTICESTEKENE
o YRREFEXBEEADZILIIARTR
EYREE B IR N AR AR RAOBERITE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to talents,
skills, experience, independence and knowledge. The Company will
also take into consideration its own business model and specific needs
from time to time. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises seven Directors,
amongst them, three are Independent Non-Executive Directors, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management process. The
Board is also characterized by significant diversity, whether considered
in terms of gender, age, professional experience, skills and knowledge.

Having reviewed the Policy and the Board’s composition, the Nomination
Committee considered that the requirements of the Policy had been
met.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An Audit Committee has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference and all members of the Audit Committee
are Independent Non-Executive Directors. Pursuant to the Audit
Committee’s terms of reference, the Audit Committee is authorised to
commit Company funds in order to obtain advice from outside legal
counsel, accountants, investigatory services or other expert advice.
Details of the authority and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau Chi
Wah, Alex. Mr. Fung Yat Sang is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Audit Committee held three
meetings to, including but not limited to, review the annual results
for the year ended 31 March 2013 and the interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2013 before their submission to the Board
and monitored the integrity of such financial statements. In addition,
the Audit Committee also had a private meeting with the independent
auditor without the presence of management to discuss any area of
concern. The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is
set out in the section headed “"Board and Committees Meetings” of this
Report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board with
specific written terms of reference and the majority of the members of
the Remuneration Committee are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Details of the authority and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and
Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex, one Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. Cheng
Chung Hing, and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Cheng Tai Po. Mr.
Kiu Wai Ming is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting to approve the remuneration packages and
performance bonuses for the Directors and senior management of
the Company. The attendance of each member of the Remuneration
Committee is set out in the section headed "Board and Committees
Meetings” of this Report.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
March 2014 are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board with
specific terms of reference. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for, amongst other things, identifying individuals suitably gualified to
become Board members, considering the reappointment of the Directors
and succession planning for Directors and making recommendations to
the Board in respect of the aforesaid matters. Details of the authority
and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau Chi
Wah, Alex, one Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. Cheng Chung Hing,
and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Cheng Tai Po. Mr. Lau Chi Wah,
Alex is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Nomination Committee
has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and
concluded that members of the Board has possessed the expertise and
independence to carry out the Board's functions and responsibilities.

BOARD AND COMMITTEES MEETINGS

The individual attendance records of each Director at the meetings of
the Board, Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee during the
year ended 31 March 2014 are set out below:
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Audit Remuneration

Board Committee Committee

Name of Director EEHE EEg BREES FHEES
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing SR 5 A 4/4 - 11
Mr. Cheng Tai Po BRI A& 4/4 - 11
Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy EAEZ/ME 4/4 - -
Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman* B 52530/ N * 3/3 - -
Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas# TR TE 11 - -
Mr. Fung Yat Sang KR E ST 4/4 3/3 1/1
Mr. Kiu Wai Ming BHERSTE 4/4 3/3 11
Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex BEERE 4/4 3/3 171
* Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman was appointed as an Executive Director of the  * B3/ MER 201349 A2 BEZEARRQRIH

Company on 2 September 2013. T8F -
# Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas resigned as a Non-Executive Director of the ~ *# FEF A ER2013F7 A1 BEHI AR R I

Company on 11 July 2013. WITES -
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 which gives a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2014, and
of the results and cash flows for year then ended. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014, the Board has
selected appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which
are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial statements,
made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable,
and ensured the preparation of the financial statements on the going
concern basis.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects. The
interim and annual results of the Company are announced in a timely
manner within the limit of two months and three months, respectively,
after the end of the relevant periods in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for preparing all

information and representation contained in the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2014.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to
PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out as follows:
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HK$'000

FAT

Audit of financial statements BRI IRE 1,500
Agreed-upon procedures on interim results RHEIXEE TR 380
Financial and tax due diligence W RMERBELS 200
Other non-audit services H M IEBAZARTE 232
2,312

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the design
and implementation of internal controls which covers financial reporting,
operations, compliance and risk management of the Company, as well
as continuous monitoring the effectiveness of such internal controls.
The Board has delegated such responsibility to the management of the
Company. The management, under the supervision of the Board, has
established an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing
significant risks faced by the Group.
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The Audit Committee reviews the internal controls that are significant
to the Group on an on-going basis. The Audit Committee also considers
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group's accounting and financial reporting function, as well as their
training programmes and budgets.

During the year, the Company has engaged an external adviser to review
its internal control procedures and make recommendations to the Board
any improvements that can be made to the existing internal control
procedures. The review covers the effectiveness of material controls on
financial and operational control as well as risk management functions
across the Group. The internal control and accounting system of the
Group have been in place and functioning effectively for the year under
review.

The Board is satisfied that the internal control system in place covering
all material controls including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions for the year under review and
up to the date of issuance of the annual report is reasonably effective
and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Alex has been the Company Secretary of the Company
since February 2012. He is a full time employee of the Company and
has adequate working knowledge on the Company to discharge his
duty as the Company Secretary. Mr. Leung reports to the Chairman of
the Company and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. For the year under review, Mr. Leung has confirmed
that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM")

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the "Companies Act”), registered Shareholders holding not
less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company (the “SGM
Requisitionists”) can deposit a written request to convene a SGM at
the registered office of the Company (the “Registered Office”), which is
presently situated at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda. The SGM Requisitionists must state in their request(s) the
objects of the SGM and such request(s) must be signed by all the SGM
Requisitionists and may consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more of the SGM Requisitionists.
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The Share Registrars will verify the SGM Requisitionists’ particulars in
the SGM Requisitionists’ request. Promptly after confirmation from the
Share Registrars that the SGM Requisitionists’ request is in order, the
Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene a SGM by
serving sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders in accordance
with all the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. On the
contrary, if the SGM Requisitionists” request is verified not in order, the
SGM Requisitionists will be advised of the outcome and a SGM will nhot
be convened as requested.

The SGM Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a SGM
if within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of the SGM Requisitionists’
request, the Board does not proceed duly to convene a SGM provided
that any SGM so convened is held within three (3) months from the date
of the original SGM Requisitionists’ request. A SGM so convened by the
SGM Requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at a General Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of the registered
Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company (the “Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of such
registered Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give
to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended
to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to Shareholders entitled
to receive notice of the next general meeting any statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Requisitionists; and it must be deposited at the Registered Office with a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses, not
less than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution or not less than one week before the meeting
in the case of any other requisition. Provided that if an AGM is called
for a date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited,
the requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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Shareholders’ Enquires and Proposals

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company's share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, or call its
customer service hotline at (852) 2980 1333.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The annual general meeting provides an opportunity for shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. The chairman of the Board, the
chairman of Audit Committee and the chairman of Remuneration
Committee had attended the 2013 AGM of the Company held on 20
August 2013 to answer shareholders’ questions.

The public are welcomed to give their comments and make enquiries
through the Company’s website and by means of emails to the investor
relations department (email address: ir-hk@man-sang.com). The
management always provides prompt responses to any such enquiries.
During the year ended 31 March 2014, there are no changes in the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association. An up-to-date
consolidated version of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association is available on the Company’s website.

By Order of the Board
CHENG Chung Hing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 May 2014
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors (the “Director(s)”) of Man Sang International Limited (the
“Company”) herein present their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year, the
Group is principally engaged in two lines of businesses: (i) purchasing,
processing, designing, production and wholesale distribution of pearls
and jewellery; and (ii) property development and investment which
covers development, sales and leasing of properties.

The principal activities of the Company’s major subsidiaries are set out
in Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 43 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 23 July 2014 to Friday, 25 July 2014 (both days inclusive),
for the purpose of determining Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be
held on Friday, 25 July 2014 (the “2014 AGM"), during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the 2014 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on Tuesday, 22 July 2014.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s net reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
as at 31 March 2014 amounted to HK$21,836,000 (2013: HK$49,945,000),
which represented the retained earnings.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in investment properties and property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 18 and 21
to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

Borrowings repayable on demand or within one year are classified under
current liabilities. Details of the borrowings are set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements. Interest and other borrowing costs
capitalised by the Group during the year are set out in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$30,000.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five-year financial summary of the Group is set out on page 133.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Tai Po (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy
Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman
(appointed as an executive director on 2 September 2013)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas

(resigned as a non-executive director on 11 July 2013)
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fung Yat Sang

Mr. Kiu Wai Ming
Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex
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In accordance with article 87 of the Company's bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation. Accordingly, Mr. Cheng Tai Po, Ms. Yan Sau Man,
Amy and Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman shall retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

Each of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, Mr. Cheng Tai Po and Ms. Yan Sau
Man, Amy has entered into a service agreement with the Company
on 31 August 2012 for a fixed term of three years commencing on 1
September 2012. Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman has also entered into a
service agreement with the Company on 30 August 2013 for a fixed term
of three years commencing on 2 September 2013. Such agreements are
determinable by either party serving not less than three months’ notice
in writing to the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into
any service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 19 to 20.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below and in Note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contract of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company has been
entered into or existed during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS HERERS

The following sharing of office agreements (the “Sharing of Office AATZ2EBMBATIRAKEERAR([ELE
Agreements”) were entered into by Man Sang Jewellery Company %2 ) BEERWIERERE AT ([ZEEH]) TS
Limited (“Man Sang Jewellery”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the HARAZHH((EABRAZHE]) MBS
Company, and China South City Holdings Limited (“China South City”), H&XZFRERAT ([HZ])EEZESLH
a company being deemed as a connected person of the Company by #RBI([ LW EE])F 14A.06 (&1 TEE B IG5 -
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) at  #SZEmRMARIERA T ZEE AT - Bt - 1B
its discretion under Rule 14A.06 of the Rules Governing the Listing of  FH#RAIE 14AE - RAREMERIKET
Securities (the “Listing Rules”). As such, the entering into the Sharing of B A=W EREE M RETZ SHBRKAA T
Office Agreements between Man Sang Jewellery and China South City 7 #3ERgE S o

and the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted continuing

connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.
Consideration for
the year ended
Connected person  Date of agreement Terms Shared Premises 31 March 2014
HZ2014F
3A31H
BEAL ik 4=k BUH LRmE JJ:fFEZﬁf%
HK
BT
China South City 23 February 2011 3years commencingon  Suite 2205, 22/F Sun Life Tower, The Gateway, 15 Canton $1,782,000
2011E2R23H 17 March 2011 to Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong with a total floor (Note 1)
16 March 2014 area of approximately 3,873 square feet. (Bzx1)
(both days inclusive)
Ei #2011€3R178Z EENERDHBRESRABRAEKAERAB2E
NUFIAGALE=F  200%F LEAEEHISIIFAR -
(BEEEMB)
China South City 13 March 2014 3years commencingon  Suite 2205, 22/F Sun Life Tower, The Gateway, 15 Canton $120,000
2014%3A13H 17 March 2014 to Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong with a total floor (Note 1)
16 March 2017 area of approximately 3,873 square feet. (Bsx1)
(both days inclusive)
EB f2014E3/178% BANBADEERE STARAREKAERAE2E
017F3A16AE=F  205F  LEEEELNIIBEFR -
(BEERMA)
Note: BtsE

1. The annual consideration is based on monthly rental fees, management 1. 2EREDERNTGAE:  EBEE  THE -
fees, air- conditioning fees, utilities fees and government rates. KEBREMMTE o

Rental fees, management fees, air-conditioning fees and utilities fees RIBHARA=HE  EmHEARERAERKEX
payable by China South City to Man Sang Jewellery under the Sharing of 2 & B8  =HENMKEE - HiRE
Office Agreement were based on terms mutually agreed between both 5 FEIERETE -

parties.

An announcement was published on 13 March 2014 (the “Announcement”) 2014638138 - A AR 2R TR A

regarding the continuing connected transactions in accordance with the i FiliiBEBEST S TIEAE ([AE]) -
Listing Rules.
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The continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company who have
confirmed that for the year ended 31 March 2014, the continuing
connected transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Company; (ii) on normal commercial
terms; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the
auditor of the Company to perform certain factual findings procedures
in respect of the continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has reported the factual findings on these procedures to
the Board and confirmed that for the year ended 31 March 2014, the
continuing connected transactions (i) are properly approved by the board
of Directors of the Company; (i) have been entered into in accordance
with the terms of the agreements governing the transactions; and (iii)
have not exceeded the cap amounts for the year ended 31 March 2014
as set out in the Announcement.

COMPETING BUSINESSES

As at 31 March 2014, none of the Directors had any interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s businesses.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme which was adopted
on 2 August 2002 (the “Share Option Scheme”) are set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Details of the movement of the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme during the year are set out below:

Exercise Balance at

FRRBEERETER L 2 BRE 2 285
;AT

Changes during the year

FREH
Exercised Lapsed Balance at

Price 1 April during during 31 March
Grantees Date of grant Exercisable period HK$ 2013  theyear  the year 2014 Notes
R2013F R2014F
TEE 481H 3A31A
ARA R A s BT ZE% FRTE FRAXX ok 33 MiaE
Other Employees
e s
2 March 2012 2 March 2012 to 0.610 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 3

1 March 2017
201263 A2H 2012838282
2017%3A818

Notes:

1. These share options represent personal interest held as beneficial owner.

2. The Company recorded the fair value of these share options as staff
cost in the consolidated income statement. The Company will record the
nominal value of the shares which is HK$0.10 per share issued pursuant to
the exercise price of the share options as additional share capital and the
Company will record the excess of the exercise price of the share options
over nominal value of the shares in its share premium account. Any share
options which have lapsed or been cancelled will be deducted from the
balance of the share options.

3. 1,000,000 share options will be vested on the first anniversary of the date
of grant, another 1,000,000 share options will be vested on the second
anniversary of the date of grant and the remaining 1,000,000 share options
will be vested on the third anniversary of the date of grant.

GRANT OF CONSULTANT OPTION

On 23 August 2011, the Company entered into a consultancy services
agreement (the “Consultancy Services Agreement”) with Magical Asia
Capital Limited (the “Consultant”), an independent third party, where the
Consultant agreed to provide the following services to the Company: (i)
advise and assist the Group in seeking and identifying an appropriate
target company for the strategic co-operation in the development of
micro credit businesses; (ii) assist the Group in seeking and identifying
a senior executive with appropriate experience and reputation in the
financial sector; and (iii) perform such other duties as may be mutually
agreed (if any).

In consideration of the provision of the services by the Consultant,
the Company agreed to grant option to the Consultant to subscribe
for 49,415,608 shares of the Company (the “Consultant Option”,
representing 4% of the issued share capital of the Company on the date
of grant of the Consultant Option) as service fee paid to the Consultant.
The exercise price of the Consultant Option was fixed at HK$0.515 per
share. The Consultant Option is exercisable in whole or in part at any
time within five years from 20 September 2011.

No Consultant Option was exercised or lapsed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")), which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which the Directors have taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were set out below:

(@) Long positions in ordinary shares of the
Company
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ESHEA R SRR

M2014FE3A31MH  EFRARASHEENM
LB REHF LB ([FHREBER
B 1) B XV E L T RRE ) 2 B ~ MERERR D 3k
BETHEEQRBEEFMAEIEMEXVIBE
TRESHEZMEBBMAARRERA (B
ERBEELSLAEENEEEE T ESHGE
BAEZERIAR) O RIEFHFLKBHEK
B 55 352 (& ZA S A ZIEBIFTIE M & 52+ 34(0)
BIEEMRBMESE+ 2 L AR ESHEITES
RSGRVZESTA(MZ2ESFR) D BRI AR RF] R
BT 2 B MK B AT

(@) REQRFAEBRZER

Number of ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each held

FEEEREE010BT2EEREE
Percentage of
the issued
Direct Deemed Total share capital
Name of director Capacity interest interest interest of the Company
RN
ERITRAE
EBEpE 51 HEER RERAER RS Botk
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing Beneficial owner and interest 341,773,453 468,781,655 810,555,108 63.32%
of a controlled corporation (Note)
/N EnE AR LB (BF3E)
Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy Beneficial owner 18,000,000 - 18,000,000 1.40%
BAEZ/ME ERBAA
Note: Mz -

These 468,781,655 shares of the Company were directly owned by Rich
Men Limited, where Mr. Cheng Chung Hing owns 100% of the issued share
capital of Rich Men Limited.

(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the

Ccompany

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors had, as at 31 March
2014, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
(a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors
have taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Rich Men Limited B £ # 5 468,781,655 & A &
AR (D - T EPFAH 55 & #E A Rich Men Limited
HIE B1TA AN 100% ©

(b) XLABRHEERGZHFE

BrEXWEESN - R2014F3A318 ¢
T4 T ] 2 B A A B B E (T ] AR B

B (%55 5 K B EE BB XV 208 F 5905
B)ZBRH - HERGDRESPHES Q)
BRIEEHSNBEEMNEXVIHBETIRES
DEPZ B EEME AR RSB AT (B
BEBLSLACIEIEBRE TEEH
BEFBBZEZRAR)  HO)BIEE
5 N HAES 160 55 352 (& B 50 A SZ A& 01l P
R ERLM SO RBFZESTRAENS
KRR MBS FTZ TR R -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
A

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2014, substantial shareholders’ interests and short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company,
other than the Directors, as recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

EERERDNES ZEF

FREMNESHERBRFHFLRBEERT
AFREBAARRBR DS ESME S 2R - 3
TTEZEEN  MAARB S AT E R R IR
BRI IR LR EEAMEEFAEMEA
EEZAFHER -

FTERRZEFER

R2014F3A31E  REARARKRESK
HERIIERBEFEZ T ZRRELMA
& 2R (EZMRN) EARFRD KA
B FHE 2B ARINT

Number of shares held

ZiEsTgvie ¢E|
Percentage of
the ordinary
Direct Deemed shares of
Name of shareholder Capacity interest interest the Company
HARAT
BEEHE S BEEs REREEEz TERISH
Rich Men Limited Beneficial Owner 468,781,655 - 36.62%
ExnEEA

The interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, the Company has not
been notified of any person (other than the Directors of the Company) or
entity had an interest or a short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules for securities transactions by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiries with all the Directors, they have confirmed
compliance with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2014.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed the independence
of all the Independent Non-executive Directors and is satisfied of their
independence.
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Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex and Mr. Kiu Wai Ming had served the Board of
the Company for more than nine years. They have clearly demonstrated
their willingness to exercise independent judgement and to provide
objective challenges to the management. There is no evidence that
length of tenure is having an adverse impact on their independence. The
Board therefore considers that Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex and Mr. Kiu Wai
Ming remain independent, notwithstanding the length of their tenure.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee, which comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company, has reviewed with the management in
conjunction with the auditor, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed the internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31 March
2014 contributed by the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as
follows:

Purchases

—  the largest supplier 12%
—  five largest suppliers combined 41%
Sales

— the largest customer 9%
— five largest customers combined 34%

None of Directors, their associates or substantial shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) were interested, at any time during the year, in the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS' INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of the Directors during the year ended 31 March 2014 and
up to the date of this report are set out below:

Name of Director Details of Changes

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing Annual salary adjusted to HK$3,000,000
from 1 April 2013

Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas ~ Resigned as a non-executive director on
11 July 2013

Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman  Appointed as an executive director on
2 September 2013

Annual salary adjusted to HK$500,000
from 1 April 2014

Mr. Cheng Tai Po Annual salary adjusted to HK$1,000,000
from 1 April 2014
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
A

Save for information disclosed, there is no other information required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float during the year and up to the date of this Directors’
Report under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment in the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 March 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report of the Annual Report.

On behalf of the Board

Cheng Chung Hing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 May 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

_E
pwec

To the shareholders of Man Sang International Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Man Sang
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 43 to 132, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2014, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥ R Sl

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2014, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 May 2014
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

B Wt A

Year ended 31 March
BZE3AMBLEE

2014 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BisE FEx FHET
Revenue A 7 351,380 461,185
Cost of sales SHE AR 1 (206,103) (309,697)
Gross profit EF 145,277 151,488
Other income H At ez 9 1,683 2,021
Other gains — net HAt W A—F5 10 2,134 14,421
Selling expenses HEMX 11 (19,251) (17,479)
Administrative expenses TERAX 1 (73,591) (84,914)
Increase in fair values of investment REMERTERENE
properties and investment properties AREEE
under construction 80,950 46,638
Operating profit Nl 137,202 112,175
Finance income B s 37 5,077 15,129
Finance costs B FER AR 37 (4,932) (15,250)
Finance income/(costs) — net g/ (BA) — %58 145 (121)
Share of profit of an associate A5 — KB D ER A 29 23
Profit before income tax BRETEBANRF 137,376 112,077
Income tax expense s x 14 (51,780) (47,810)
Profit for the year REERF 85,596 64,267
Attributable to: &R
Equity holders of the Company RRARIRR 68,463 48,244
Non-controlling interests FEiz i 2 17,133 16,023
85,596 64,267
Earnings per share attributable to EATRRREETRERF
equity holders of the Company 16
Basic 9N 5.35 HK cents#&{li  3.78 HK cents L
Diluted e 5.29 HK cents#&{l  3.78 HK cents &1Ll

Details of dividend to the equity holders of the Company are set out in

note 17.

The notes on pages 52 to 132 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ok o A i W A

Year ended 31 March
BE3AMALEE

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Profit for the year REF R 85,596 64,267
Other comprehensive income: Hi2mEmias :
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss — AJfEE 7 EE W zs k2 EH
Exchange difference on translation of MEFINRE 2 B ERR
foreign operations 17,660 -
Increase in fair value of leasehold land and HE LM RIEFTAEEE
buildings, net of deferred income tax BRIRE TS TUERR 564 9,447
Other comprehensive income for the year ANFEE M2 UG 18,224 9,447
Total comprehensive income for the vyear, AFEEENERRE - BRI FRE
net of tax 103,820 73,714
Attributable to: &ML
Equity holders of the Company ZN/NGT 3 80,737 57,691
Non-controlling interests FEEAR 23,083 16,023
103,820 73,714

The notes on pages 52 to 132 are an integral part of these consolidated %52 &F 132 B 2 Mt ARG A SR E e
financial statements. #Ho o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
B R AR

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2014 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Investment properties HEYE 18 996,515 902,342
Investment properties under ERIEEME 19
construction 67,536 64,452
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE MR 21 123,635 126,712
Prepaid lease payments AN FAERIE 22 154 162
Prepayments TEf FE 348 969
Investment in an associate i NG g 23 176 144
Deferred income tax assets BREFMSHEE 25 3,067 1,695
1,191,431 1,096,476
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 26 78,282 76,771
Properties under development BERYE 20 142,752 =
Completed properties held for sale BIEHE 2RI YE 27 186,291 208,840
Trade and other receivables FE U &S T R E i FE U BR FX 28 103,576 148,498
Financial assets at fair value BRERRARENEREZ 29
through profit or loss W& E 21,775 28,396
Current income tax recoverable HE W TSR 7 1,938
Cash and cash equivalents RekERRE 30 392,355 440,770
925,038 905,213
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables FEA & 3% EAth FE AT BR R 31 408,494 387,711
Current income tax liabilities EHMSEHEaE 116,704 108,987
Borrowings BE 32 125,400 216,900
Amount due to an associate FE — B A BRI 23 2,961 2,581
653,559 716,179
Net current assets RBEEFE 271,479 189,034
Total assets less HEERRBARE
current liabilities 1,462,910 1,285,510
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AR AR

As at 31 March

M3H31H
2014 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FHExT FHIT
Non-current liabilities EREERE
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFFEHRERE 25 213,602 171,968
Borrowings Te 32 175,600 110,700
389,202 282,668
Net assets BEERE 1,073,708 1,002,842
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity AATREELRES
holders of the Company
Share capital & A 33 128,019 128,019
Reserves B
— Proposed dividends — BRAZ B 17 - 25,604
— Others — Hi 799,617 709,471
927,636 863,094
Non-controlling interests FEiE IR R 146,072 139,748
Total equity RS 1,073,708 1,002,842

The notes on pages 52 to 132 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

F2ENINAZMERARE M BRERAER

2By e

FREI1RNEFHEEVBERERE KR 20144
SA20BEZE =S RIRETIZ - WHE T

The consolidated financial statements on pages 43 to 132 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 May

2014 and were signed on its behalf by: BEEAREE
Cheng Chung Hing Cheng Tai Po

19N AR

Chairman & Non-Executive Director Deputy Chairman & Executive Director
FERIHNTEE BIFERHTEE
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BALANCE SHEET
Y e
Hr il
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2014 2013
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 5T TERT FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZHE 24 211,245 211,074
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUL BT B A R T IE 24 281,513 282,049
492,758 493,123
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b e BR 3R 267 752
Financial assets at fair value through EBBEREANETRZ
profit or loss BB E 29 - 720
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUL BT B A Rl 3R IE 24 10,036 36,131
Cash and cash equivalents ReLERRE 30 1,704 1,294
12,007 38,897
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables H B (< BR 3K 1,133 450
Net current assets RBEEFE 10,874 38,447
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 503,632 531,570
Net assets BEEFE 503,632 531,570
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity holders Z<2A TR RE(GEZ
of the Company
Share capital f& A 33 128,019 128,019
Reserves i
— Proposed dividends — ¥R B 17 - 25,604
— Others —H i 35 375,613 377,947
Total equity HRER 503,632 531,570

The notes on pages 52 to 132 are an integral part of these consolidated 552 & 132 B 7 MisT ARG & MG R e &
financial statements. B o

The consolidated financial statements on pages 43 to 132 were S$43F 1N E &GS M BRED R 201445E
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 May 5820 BEE et & RIE#ETIZ - W h T3

2014 and were signed on its behalf by: EERRFEZ
Cheng Chung Hing Cheng Tai Po

/N BB K 3R

Chairman & Non-Executive Director Deputy Chairman & Executive Director
FERIHNTEE BIFERHITEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

i Bl Al

Year ended 31 March
BE3HA3MHLEEE

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&x FET
Cash flows from operating activities REEBELCHERE
Profit before income tax R PS5 AL A 137,376 112,077
Adjustments for: TP SIBED 2 A
Interest income FEWA (5,077) (15,129)
Interest expenses BRI 4,932 15,250
Depreciation of property, VI - BB RREITE
plant and equipment 6,956 7,675
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 81410 & ZkIE# 5 8 3
Impairment loss on prepaid lease BAEERIRE O RERE
payments - 5,704
Share of profit of an associate FEMR—HKEE R Ela (29) (23)
Share-based payment VARG D B2 2 3R 171 379
Increase in fair values of investment WEMERITRIEME
properties and investment properties NAEEE
under construction (80,950) (46,638)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR ZERE 1 2,314
Gain on disposals of investment HEREYMERTERERE
properties and investment properties M7 WA
under development - (9,577)
Gain on disposals of property, HEME - HEREBEZBA
plant and equipment (144) (407)
Fair value change in financial assets at WBIBEREARBEYIERZ
fair value through profit or l0ss WEEEAAEER 2,991 (4,933)
Dividend income % Mz (1,231) (1,590)
Operating cash flows before EEESBHAIZ
working capital changes REFESRE 65,004 65,610
Change in working capital: BIEE 4
Inventories FE (1,511) (5,615)
Completed properties held for sale BIEHE 2RI YE 27,357 113,800
Properties under development ERERPYE (117,349) (6,052)
Trade and other receivables JFE W R e L Ath M AR R 35,058 (3,995)
Prepayments TEfTFRIE 621 1,755
Trade and other payables FEATE R E A A AR 3K 25,819 (85,968)
Amount due to an associate FEAS — KB & A B 3IR 316 549
Cash generated from operations REXBREEZES 35,315 80,084
Interest paid BERFE (14,661) (17,380)
Income taxes paid BERFTEE (9.463) (32,320)
Net cash generated from REEREECHESTH
operating activities 11,191 30,384
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
R Bl Al AR

Year ended 31 March
BEZE3HA3MHLEEE

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Cash flows from investing activities KRETHELEZRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B &2 - HE & & (3,069) (2,570)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME  BENEEMERIE
plant and equipment 416 422
Proceeds from disposals of HEREYEMS IR
investment properties - 13,985
Proceeds from financial assets at FrS I8 2K B BB RIZ
fair value through profit or loss, net NRBEVR B EEFE 3,630 21,972
Settlement of entrusted loan EEE R - 123,000
Disposal of subsidiaries LS B A A 1 (3,041)
Dividend received B U B 1,231 1,590
Interest received EHFHE 5,077 15,129
Net cash generated from investing REFZTEHELCREFE
activities 7,286 170,487
Cash flows from financing activities ®EEFBELZRERE
Issue of new shares BITHAR - 6,572
Proceeds from borrowings BEFSHIEA 48,000 200,000
Repayments of borrowings EEEE (77,975) (56,900)
Acquisition of additional interest in Wi — B A R 2 BB MER
a subsidiary (17,300) (28,400)
Dividend paid B E (25,598) (486,472)
Net cash used in financing activities ®EEFEFAZRESEE (72,873) (365,200)
Net decrease in cash and REeEREFAREERDZFHE
cash equivalents (54,396) (164,329)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning  F¥zR & MERRE
of the year 440,770 605,099
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  [EXR &8 g4 5,981 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end FR2ESRZEFERS
of the year 30 392,355 440,770

The notes on pages 52 to 132 are an integral part of these consolidated 52 & 132 B 2 MiiT ARG & MGk R ey
financial statements. #o o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
B Bl A 52 ) o

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RAFRRE

Share Property Retained Non-
Share Share option  revaluation  Translation eamings controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve (note a) Total interests equity
Bikig  MEER REET AR
BE  BiEE et s EiRE (Misxa) @t B 2Es
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThAL THAL THAL TAL TAL TALT TAL T TiEn
Balance at 1 April 2012 R2012F4A 10268 126,434 333,707 16,021 108,484 72,735 613195 1,270,576 143,694 1,419,270
Profit for the year REEHEF - - - - - 48,244 48,244 16,023 64,267
Other comprehensive income: HERENE
Increase in fair value of leasehold land and HETHREFAAESE"
buildings, net of deferred income tax BELHEREE = = = 9,447 = = 9,447 = 9,447
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERANGER - - - 9,447 - 48244 57,691 16,023 73714
Final and special dividend (note 17) RERARIRE (HFE17) - - - = = (281,642 (281,642) = (281,642)
Interim and special dividend (note 17) FERERIR S (3 17) - - - - - (204,830)  (204,830) = (204,830)
Share option benefits FRIRERR - - 379 - - - 39 - 379
Issue of new shares upon exercise of share options EERERTHR 1,585 4987 - - - - 6,572 - 6,572
Transfer to share premium upon exercise of AEERENEREARDEE
share options - 3185 (3189 = = = = = =
Transfer to retained eamings upon lapse of BRER SR REET
share options - - (1,488) - - 1,488 - - -
Release of property revaluation reserve upon AELREFHERRE
depreciation of leasehold land and buildings nEEGHE - - - (1,115) - 1,115 - - -
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary YiE—TAM B AR 2 EoMER - - - - - 14,348 14,348 (24,969) (10,621)
Transferred to retained earnings upon disposals HERELEZRTNERERA
of completed properties held for sale, REEF - RECHERTE
net of deferred income tax - - - (2,420) - 2420 - - -
Total transactions with owners BEFAETIRSEE 1,585 8172 (4,294) (3,535) = (467,101) (465,173) (24969 (490,142)
Balance at 31 March 2013 R2013F3ANAZES 128019 301,879 1,727 114,3% 72,735 194,338 863,094 139,748 1,002,342
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AT REAR SR W) R

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KAARREL
Share  Property Retained Non-
Share Share option revaluation Translation  earnings controlling Total
capital  premium reserve  reserve reserve  (notea) Total interests equity
BRE  NEEfR REEF FER
BE  RGEE e BE  ERRG (GED) @t [ $: it 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TEn TEn TEn TER TER TEx TEx FEx
Balance at 1 April 2013 R2013E4 18 268 128,019 341,879 11,727 114,396 72,735 194,338 863,094 139,748 1,002,842
Profit for the year AEEEF - - - - - 68,463 68,463 17,133 85,596
Other comprehensive income: b2
Exchange difference on translation of RESFNERELER
foreign operations - - - - 11,710 - 11,710 5,950 17,660
Increase in fair value of leasehold land and buildings, ~ BE L REFARERE -
net of deferred income tax RELMEREE - - - 564 - - 564 - 564
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERAUNELE - - - 564 11,710 68,463 80,737 23,083 103,820
Final dividend (note 17) RIS (H17) - - - - - (25,604) (25,604) - (25,604)
Share option benefits BIERT - - VAl - - - VAl - 7
Release of property revaluation reserve upon RELHRBTHEREE
depreciation of leasehold land and buildings MEEMRRE - - - (1,158) - 1,158 - - -
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsiciary E—RNRAR BIMER
(note 41) (GiEL) - - - - - 9,238 9,238 (16,759) (7,521)
Transferred to retained earnings upon disposals of LEREHEZRTNERER
completed properties held for sales, RERT - REEHERFE
net of deferred income tax - - - (1,262) - 1,262 - - -
Total transactions with owners BREAETIR AT - - 17 (2,420) - (13946) (16195  (16759)  (32,954)
Balance at 31 March 2014 R2014 53 A 31 A zEH 128,019 341,879 11,898 112,540 84,445 248,855 927,636 146,072 1,073,708
Note: Btir

(@  The Group's retained earnings included an amount of HK$28,326,000 (2013:
HK$26,622,000) reserved by the subsidiaries in the People’'s Republic of
China (“PRC") in accordance with the relevant PRC regulations. The PRC
laws and regulations require companies registered in the PRC to provide
for certain statutory reserves, which are to be appropriated from the net
profit (after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years) as reported in
their respective statutory financial statements, before profit distributions to
equity holder. All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes. PRC
company is required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to statutory
surplus reserves, upon distribution of its post-tax profits of the current
year. A company may discontinue the contribution when the aggregate
sum of the statutory surplus reserve is more than 50% of its registered
capital. The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to make up
losses of the company, to expand the company’s production operations, or
to increase the capital of the company. In addition, a company may make
further contribution to the discretional surplus reserve using its post-tax
profits in accordance with resolutions of the board of directors.

The notes on pages 52 to 132 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2014 H#E=—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Man Sang International Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
(i) purchasing, processing, designing, production and wholesale
distribution of pearls and jewellery; and (i) development, sales and
leasing of properties.

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended). The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"), which include all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong, disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Main Board
Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, investment properties, investment properties under
construction and leasehold land and buildings, which are
carried at fair values. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4.

5 B R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE—T—ME=A=+—HIt&FE
2. XESTHERME(E)

BB BN BHREERINT

BEFECAETHARSIHE

Subsidiaries

)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the group has control. The group controls
an entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-
company transactions that are recognised in assets
are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &Z—-Z—

WE=ZA=1+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Subsidiaries (Continued)

)

(i)

(iii)

Consolidation (Continued)

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
in their capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=F—NFE=A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FESTBERBE(F)

(c) Associates (c)

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group's investment in an associate includes
goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of 10sses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to “share of profit/(loss)
of an associate” in the consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group's financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investment in an associate
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Y5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 H#E=—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held by the
Group or under finance lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, which include property interest held
under operating lease carried at fair value.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the balance
sheet date. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

The fair values of investment properties are based on
valuation by independent valuers who hold recognised
professional qualification and have recent experience in the
location and category of properties being valued. Fair value
is determined based on market value, being the estimated
amount for which a property could be exchanged on the
date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in
an arm'’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein
the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment and its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its deemed cost
for accounting purposes. The deemed cost of property, plant
and equipment is used as the basis for the carrying amount
and depreciation of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

5 B R Mk
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=—Z—NE=A=+—HItFE
2. XESTHERME(E)

Investment properties (Continued)

Properties that are being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property are classified as investment
properties under construction. Investment properties under
construction are initially stated at cost, including borrowing
costs capitalised, aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct expenses, less any
impairment losses. At the balance sheet date when fair
value can be determined reliably, it is stated at fair value
subsequent to initial recognition. Any difference between
the fair value of the property at the date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Where fair value is not reliably determinable,
such investment property under construction is measured at
cost until either its fair value becomes reliably determinable
or construction is completed (whichever is earlier).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Subsequent costs are included
in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the year in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land and buildings transferred from investment
properties are stated at deemed cost equal to its fair value
at the date of change in use and is continued to account
for as if it was an asset held under finance lease. The entire
lease payment of leasehold land and buildings are included
in the cost of land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment and stated at deemed cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 H#E=—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. TESTHBREEHE)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (e) W%  BEKRRZE (&
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less BRIEETAZSN - TE T AHKAE
accumulated impairment losses, other than construction in WBEHREEE - KRR hERIR
progress, over their estimated useful lives from the date on BE% - A B HFE A B s
which they are available for use and after taking into account ZAGET AL A AL B A
of their estimated residual values, using the straight-line BEREXRNT :
method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings ~ Over the shorter of the term HETHREF HBHFHNS0F
of the lease or 50 years (AERBERZE)
Leasehold improvements 25%-33% HEBFEE 25%-33%
Plant and machinery 20%-25% R K zs 20%-25%
Furniture, fixtures and 25% R HER 25%
equipment B
Motor vehicles 25% e 25%
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately mEEREERNEGETKE R
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is B REERMENSHBREEA
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Residual Wl £ %8 o FIeREE K 0] 5 F 5
values and useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet HREEEAER -
date.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing &2 BETIN LR ATE IR R
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised RHEREZRET  LEGeRERA
within “Other gains — net” in the consolidated income [E A — 58] R RERR ©
statement.
(f) Properties under development () BERDY=E

Properties that are being constructed or developed for
future use as held-for-sales are classified as properties
under development and stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to the sale proceeds of properties sold in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion, or by
management estimates based on prevailing marketing
conditions.

Development cost of property comprises construction
costs, amortisation of land use rights and borrowing costs
capitalised, and professional fees incurred during the
development period. On completion, the properties are
transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets when the construction of the relevant properties
commences unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond normal operating cycle.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE=ZT—MF=A=+—HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FESTBERBE(F)

(g) completed properties held for sale (8) BIEHEZRIYHE
Ccompleted properties remaining unsold at the end of the RERMAREE 2RI - K
year are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. MER A EIFE 2 RIEEVIER -
Cost comprises development costs attributable to the unsold BABREREEMERELZ ERK
properties. PN
Net realisable value is determined by reference to the AERFEDNREEATEBLRBIR
sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course RHEYEZ HEMRFHRIE - BE
of business, less applicable variable selling expenses, or BRCIZFHERSIEETE @ kB
by management estimates based on prevailing marketing ERERBRITMAELAET&E
conditions. TE °

(h) Prepaid lease payments (h) BHEHEERE
Prepaid lease payments include up-front payments to ENHERERERERE T
acquire leasehold land and payments for lease of properties, BHFBEERBREEHEREZY
where the leases are held under operating lease. Prepaid FHERNRK - BNAERIBRKA
lease payments are stated at cost and are amortised on a B8R - WiIRH A E AR A8 -
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets (i) FHMBEEZRE

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the balance sheet
date.

BEFERABRCEE (PINEEIE
RAIAERZEBLEE)  BFE
TTRER M AEE A - A
ETAEHRBEREERREATH
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ERZEEADRE - WAt EE
ZEHEBLEAIRESE  RIZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 H#E=—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. TESTHBREEHE)

() Financial assets () HBEE

(i) Classification (i) 28

REEKEM B EE D BN
T BREBEaRARER
Z BB E A R E R R
R e DR T WIEARE
BEEZBNME - EEE
RYVRERFRENHEE

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets, if expected to be settled within
12 months, otherwise they are classified as non-
current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents in the balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk Y5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=F—NFE=A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are presented in the consolidated income
statement within — “Other gains — net”, in the period
in which they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

2. FESTBERBE(F)

()

MBEE (&)
(i) BwARTE
MBEECRREEREER

(iii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 H#E=—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE=ZT—MF=A=+—HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FESTBERBE(F)

(k) Inventories (k) #&

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable FEDRKAERFTZERFE R
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and, REAR - KABEBREMERERK
where applicable, cost of conversion and other costs ANCA R (QR3E R ) B HRRK 7N [2 Hfh 58
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to FEEBHE B AR Kok P E &
their present location and condition, is calculated using LR o BANBE TR INAE R AR
the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value ERTE o AIEIRFEERAEEKB
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course B 2 5t S BRI ET TR A &
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the HETSHER A ©

estimated selling expenses.

() Trade and other receivables () ERERREMEVRIERR
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for EWERAERBEBBRERE
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary ER M BITRE M EK R 23K
course of business. If collection of trade and other 18 o N AR —F sk LA (SR IEIE
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal B AP ERRERE) Y e &K
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified ERREMEUART - BIZERR
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current PBRRRBEE : B8 ZEFEEX
assets. 2 RIEMEERE o
Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair FE W E R R E A R BR SR PR A
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using RERER - EERAERF =A%
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. BEHRCARINBROBERETE -

(m) cash and cash equivalents (m) RERERRS
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and RekERBeERRITERRTF
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial SRR - TF AR ERTT R EL At B 75
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments BZARTER  URGEEERE
with original maturities of three months or less, in the FIETRTHEHAA=EAUA
consolidated balance sheet. Z =AM R R A o

(n) Provisions, contingent liabilities and (n) B JAEEBRIAREE

contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions
are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the
effect is material.

fief A &= ) (] 38 £ =08 1 AR IR B
B BEHIAKBEEETARE
T RIEEREE - BEHAESER
HBEBRETRREEABRAIEL
LERELEHNE  MTRTEBRE
A AR EHETRIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 H#E=—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBEME(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(o) Borrowings (o) BE&
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of BENMKRAEER IR AN ENL
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently BARERR - He R A
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the iR PTSRIR (FIBRAZ S AN ) LA
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value EIEERZFRAZENEERREE
is recognised in the consolidated income statement over the RAEBRFEENGRE R RER ©
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are EEFRRE TS K2 IR
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that MERT MR ERBME S HH
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn BRNERBERRZRZHA it
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down BAT  ZERABEEZRENER
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable 2 o TR RN RAE R i B SRR
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee BAREE D 2 EIRMABERT -
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and ZERBARERIERREE 2R
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates. RITERTRIE - WA E AR R mh A& BARE
AT LABE Y o
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the BEDOBERARBDEE  BRIFAE
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the EEmRMENSFEREZ SR
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date. BEEHEE BB & D121E A BIE
R
(p) current and deferred income tax (p) BNHARIEZEFTEH
The tax expense for the period comprises current and A BT X B 48 BB RORE B
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income 15 o MIBEAREWERANER -
statement, except to the extent it relates to items recognised BT Bt R E e sk BN
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this HRRIEB BRERAIRRIN - LIS
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive AT MIBBAREMEERESE
income or directly in equity. BN ER o
() Current income tax (i) BVHIFREH
The current income tax charge is calculated on BEFmEHERREERE
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively AATIREMEREKE R
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries EEERBRAZBEREE
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and BN EE Bl BB ERE
generate taxable income. Management periodically - ERERERNBER
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to ZREHR 2B E SR
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject WWMEK MR WIEHEEE
to interpretation and establishes provisions where U 12 T8 AR A e A R 2
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be 2 SRIBYEH B -

paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk Y5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=F—NFE=A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p) Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

(i)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
an associate, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

2. FESTBERBE(F)

(p) BENBRELEFRSH ()

(ii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 H#E=—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

FESHBREE (&)

(q) Revenue recognition (q) AR

Revenue from sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when the
risks and rewards related to the properties are transferred
to purchasers, which is when the construction of relevant
properties has been completed, title to the properties has
been delivered to the purchasers and collectability of related
receivables is reasonably assured. Revenue is recognised
only to the extent collectability of such receivable is
reasonably assured.

Revenue from sales of properties with operating
leaseback

To promote sales of certain properties, the Group conducted
a promotional sale of these properties since 2009 wherein it
sold such properties at special rates to selected purchasers.
Sales consideration for these properties included an explicitly
agreed transaction price to be settled in cash plus a lease
back of these properties to the Group free of charge for the
period of 5 years. As lease back of the properties free of
charge was arranged as part of the sale of these properties,
the Group determined the fair value of lease payments it
would ordinarily make to lease such properties from other
independent owners based on factors such as expected
occupancy rates, rental yields etc. and included it as part of
the sales consideration received with a corresponding debit
to other prepaid lease payments. The other prepaid lease
payments will be amortised and recognised as operating
leases expense on a straight line basis over the period of the
lease.

Revenue from sales of goods

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.
Revenue from leasing of investment properties

Rental income under operating leases is recognised in the

period in which the properties are let out and on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=F—NFE=A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBEME(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(q) Revenue recognition (Continued) (q) AR (&)
Others Htt
Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time TR B %A E 2 B W AR ARIEER
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the Ne REAEBREME - DAL
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that BEESNE  BEREMNXDFEBRMKE
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the E 2 ERFHE A RRRSBA
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying FREZEERMFEIHE -
amount.
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the RBERE 2 M B AR AT Y EURIE
rights to receive payments have been established. LR B TERR o

(r) Retirement benefits scheme () BAKEFRE
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service EEEZFBERHRSEE £
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A BERZEZERARER - Wt
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave HEAEHREBRERSEMA =
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by FRERPARBRANMGT AEE
employees up to the balance sheet date. R o
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are EEMRBRRERMNENINEES
not recognised until the time of leave. RARK ©
In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the RIEFBRERRE - AEBEH
PRC based employees of the Group participate in various Bl E 8 2 M B A A TR
defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by &R % 1A TE A PUR KB A ET
the relevant municipal and provincial governments in the 2Bt AEEEIEESEAS
PRC under which the Group and the PRC based employees AREEFeETE S LMZE
are required to make monthly contributions to these plans ZIEH R -

calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to BB AGERAERE Litst 3l
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and BN ABRERBEZRATEES
future retired PRC based employees payable under the plans RRRRAE (T - B & AN
described above. Other than the monthly contributions, the REBWEAMEZ N EERKEE
Group has no further obligation for the payment of retirement R R BB EE - ZEFTEIH
and other post retirement benefits of its employees. The BAERTPERNEENBEYEREE
assets of these plans are held separately from those of the RA - WEAEENEESRF
Group in independently administered funds managed by the A

PRC government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 H#E=—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBEME(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r) Retirement benefits scheme (Continued) () EBRAKBFRHE (F)
The Group also participates in a pension scheme under REBTBREBEASMEABE ST E
the rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund (Mgt e 5t &1 1) R B a9 A7 B K& 43
Scheme Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”), which is a defined Bl AEZEESEER Y EEME
contribution retirement scheme for all employees in Hong FORAREEE - BESEEIHRE
Kong. The contributions to the MPF Scheme are based on REERIEBEBUABEESY D
minimum statutory contribution requirement of 5% of eligible REEAEHFREEL - HRER
employees’ relevant aggregate income subject to a cap of BFA12508 7T o R KETE
HK$1,250 per month. The assets of this pension scheme are MNEERBUEEESFF N
held separately from those of the Group in independently REERNEESRARE
administered funds.
The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution N £2 B 1) 7E BB A SRR IRET B A0 S 3K
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred. MREERZ -

(s) Share-based payments (s) UBRHBAEEZMAR
(i) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions () EREEURODGREEZM

RRB

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share- ALEMITE T A HE

based compensation plans, under which the entity B BELE L HERE - &

receives services from employees as consideration for bt BREIEBRY  F
equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value RAEERETA(BRE)
of the employee services received in exchange for ZRME - FTEREBRBH

the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. DI ERIUR B A R

The total amount to be expensed is determined by RAX - BRAXIEBMAE L

reference to the fair value of the options granted. In BRELANERE - £ER

determining the fair value of the options granted: EFTRHERE s ARER

e market performance conditions are taken into e  EERMBREABR:
considerations;

e the impact of any service and non-market o T ERETARERIED
performance vesting conditions (for example, LRERBIRITZEE
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining (Flan&Flge 1 - $HE
as employee of the entity over a specified time BB R RS ERH
period) is excluded; and NEBHSRES) &

e the impact of any non-vesting conditions is e PBRIBEBHRHEZY
included. 2o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk Y5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=F—NFE=A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s) Share-based payments (Continued)

)

(i)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At the balance sheet date, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on non-marketing vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The cash subscribed for the shares issued when the
options are exercised is credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium, net of any
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited or are not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Share-based payment transactions among group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an
increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity
accounts.

2. FESTBERBE(F)

(s) ARG BEE AR (E)

)

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE—-Z

—MEZA=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Share-based payments (Continued)
(iii) Share options granted to a consultant

Share options issued in exchange for services are
measured at fair value of the services received. The
fair value of the options granted is determined on the
same basis as those for employees and directors of
the Group. The fair value of the services received is
recognised as an expense, unless the services qualify
for recognition as assets.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets,
when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the assets for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they are incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors that makes strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk Y5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=F—NFE=A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v) Foreign currency translation

)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group's entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar ("HK$"), which is the Company's
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the consolidated income statement, except when
deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated income statement within
‘finance income or cost’. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘other gains — net'.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &Z—-Z—

WE=ZA=1+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available
for sale are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
security and other changes in the carrying amount of
the security. Translation differences related to changes
in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and
other changes in carrying amount are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available for sale, are included in
other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

@)

income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Bk Y5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=F—NFE=A=+—HItFE

2. FESTBERBE(F)

(v) IMESEE % (F&)

(i) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is partially disposed
of or sold, exchange differences that were recorded
in other comprehensive income are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

(w) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor), including
upfront payment made for land use right, are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in finance
lease obligations. The interest element of the finance cost
is charged to the consolidated income statement over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful
life of the asset and the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Y5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 H#E=—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(x) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to banks on
behalf of subsidiaries and other independent third parties to

secure loans and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the

2. TESTHBREEHE)

(x)

BHERELN

MBEREOREAOFAEATE
XEEBEBARERBRES TAK
FERH AL NEEBRAMA
AAEMNETABRFELBEZS
#) o ZEMBERTIREKMEB AR
REMBIE =R TIRIT - AE
REERLHEMIRTHE -

MBERVFENBELERAHZ
RNHERGRE P BRERER - AR

consolidated financial statements at fair values on the
date the guarantee was given. The fair value of a financial
guarantee at the time of signature is zero because all
guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms, and the value
of the premium agreed corresponds to the value of the
guarantee obligation. No receivable for the future premiums
is recognised. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s
liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher
of the initial amount, less amortisation of fees recognised
in accordance with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the
amount required to settle the guarantee. These estimates
are determined based on experience of similar transactions
and history of past losses, supplemented by management’s
judgement. The fee income earned is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee. Any
increase in the liability relating to guarantees is reported in
the consolidated income statement within administrative
eXpPenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans of subsidiaries are
provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted
for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment in the financial statements of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3.

Bk Y5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE—T—ME=A=+—HIt&FE

AR KRBT 2B RBIME

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS H2EA|

(@) New standards, revisions and amendments (@ MR2013F4B1BBEHBZE
to existing standards effective for annual EHEENEAEEREER
periods beginning 1 April 2013, relevant to [B8 i 7 7% 5% (8] % 4% o2 #7 5] 2%
the Group’s operations and adopted by the Al TEEE-%EJF)HH%E&&
Group: 5]

Amendment to HKAS 1

BB ERIFE 15 (BFTA)
Amendment to HKFRS 7

BABMBHREERNET7 5 (BFTAR)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, 11 and 12

BEABMBHREERNE 0 - MK
WMEEBNE N R RBBY B @RS
R 1257 (BT &)

HKAS 27 (2011)

BB GRS 27 5% (2011 4F)
HKAS 28 (2011)

BB ERSE 285% (2011 4F)
HKFRS 10

BAMBHEERE 105
HKFRS 12

BAMBHEERE 1258
HKFRS 13

BB WS RIS 1357
Amendment and Improvements to HKFRSs
BREMIGRMEER BT A Mg

The adoption of the above new standards, revisions and
amendments to existing standards did not have any
material impact on the preparation of the Group'’s financial

Statements.

Presentation of financial statements
Mgk 28
Financial instruments: Disclosures —

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
MBITA : #E —RKENBEERMBARG
Transition guidance
wE RS

Separate financial statements

VAR

Investments in associates and joint ventures
REtERAIREGEEELRE

Consolidated financial statements

fra BTk

Disclosures of interests in other entities

Hith BB o R E

Fair value measurement

DRfERE

Annual improvements to HKFRS 2009-2011 cycle
BB RS 2R 2009 6 £ 2011 FEHFE ok

R BT A - BB ERIRT
TEERRIERT LR RRAKE L
MIEMREKEMEARE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE—-Z

—MEZA=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(b) New standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations which have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 April 2013 and

Amendment to
HKAS 32

Amendment to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27

Amendment to
HKFRS 7 and
HKFRS 9

Amendment to
HKFRSS

Amendment to
HKFRSS

Amendment to
HKAS 36

Amendment to
HKAS 39

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HK(FRIC)-Int 21

have not been early adopted:

Financial instruments: Presentation — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities
Defined benefit plans

Consolidation for investment entities

Mandatory Effective Date and Transition Disclosures

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle

Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets

Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement —
Novation of derivatives

Financial instruments

Regulatory deferral accounts

Levies

Effective for
annual periods
beginning

on or after

1 January 2014

1 July 2014

1 January 2014

1 January 2015

1 July 2014

1 July 2014

1 January 2014

1 January 2014
Effective date

to be determined

1 January 2016

1 January 2014

The Group is assessing the impact of these standards,
amendments and interpretations and does not anticipate
that the adoption will result in any material impact on the
Group’s results of operation and financial position.

The Group intends to adopt the above standards,
amendments and interpretations when they become

effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z= ==

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 2, the Directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key areas of judgement that may have a significant impact in
determining the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor actions in response to
market conditions. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 H#E=—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Fair value of leasehold land and buildings,
investment properties and investment
properties under construction

Leasehold land and buildings, investment properties and
investment properties under construction are stated at fair
value in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.
The fair value of leasehold land and buildings, investment
properties and investment properties under construction are
determined by independent professional valuers, DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung Limited, and the fair values of leasehold land and
buildings, investment properties and investment properties under
construction are set out in notes 21, 18 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively. Such valuations were based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from actual results.

In making the judgement, reasonable consideration has been given
to the underlying assumptions based on market conditions existing
at the balance sheet date. These estimates are regularly compared
to actual market data and actual transactions in the market for
similar type of properties in nearby locations.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment
of trade receivables on a regular basis. This estimate is based
on the credit history of its customers and prevailing market
conditions. Management reassesses the provision for impairment
of trade receivables at the balance sheet date.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based on
the current market condition and the historical experience of
selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly as a
result of competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management reassesses these estimations at the end of each
reporting date to ensure inventories are shown at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk Y5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=F—NFE=A=+—HItFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Recoverability of completed properties held for
sale and properties under development

Management performs a regular review on the carrying amounts
of completed properties held for sale and properties under
development. Based on management’s review, write-down
of completed properties held for sale and properties under
development will be made when the estimated net realisable
value has declined below the carrying amount. In determining
the net realisable value of completed properties held for sale and
properties under development, management refers to the latest
economic measures introduced by the local government, recent
global and local economic developments, recent sales transactions
of the Group and other similar properties in the surrounding areas,
marketability of the Group’s existing properties, market survey
reports available from independent property valuers, internally
available information and management'’s expectation on future
sales.

Promotional sales of certain properties

As discussed in note 2(q), the Group conducted a promotional
sale of certain properties since 2009. Sales consideration for these
properties included an explicitly agreed transaction price to be
settled in cash plus a lease back of these properties to the Group
free of charge. Of the explicitly agreed transaction price the Group
received a down-payment of 24% in cash upon transfer of title to
the properties with the remainder being receivable in future. As all
the revenue recognition criteria had been met the Group recorded
this as a revenue transaction.

Having considered a number of factors such as the overall state
of the property market, the prospects of the properties and
profile of individual buyers, management determined that the
collectability of the receivable was not reasonably assured at the
date of sale. Accordingly, revenue was recorded only to the extent
of cash received. Management reassesses the collectability of
the receivable based on the credit history of the customers and
prevailing market conditions at each balance sheet date to ensure
the recoverable amount of the receivable was fairly stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 H#E=—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Share-based payment

The determination of the fair value of the share options granted
requires estimates in determining, among others, the expected
volatility of the share price, the expected dividend yield, the risk-
free interest rate for the life of the option, and the number of
options that are expected to become exercisable. Where the
outcome of these estimates is different, it will impact the fair
value of the share option and the amount of share option expense
charged to the consolidated income statement during the vesting
periods of the relevant share options.

PRC land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the PRC.
However, the implementation and settlement of these taxes varies
among various tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the Group
has not finalised its PRC land appreciation taxes calculation and
payments with any local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly,
significant judgement is required in determining the amount of
the land appreciation and its related taxes. The Group recognised
these PRC land appreciation taxes based on relevant rules and
regulations. The final tax outcome could be different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, and these differences will
impact the taxation and tax provisions in the years in which such
taxes have been finalised with local tax authorities.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings (note
32), cash and cash equivalents (note 30) and equity attributable to
equity holders of the Group.

The Group reviews the capital structure periodically. As a part of
this review, the Group considers costs of capital, its bank covenant
obligations and the risks associated with issued share capital and
may adjust its overall capital structure through the drawn down
of bank borrowings, the repayment of existing borrowings or the
adjustment of dividend to shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z= ==

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, trade and other receivables, cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other payables, borrowings, and
amount due to an associate. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments, include market risk (currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The Group does not have written risk management policies and
guidelines. However, the board of directors meets periodically to
analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group’s exposure
to different risks arising from the use of financial instruments.
Generally, the Group employs conservative strategies regarding its
risk management. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

(@) Market risk

)

Currency risk

The Group’s foreign currency assets, liabilities and
transactions are principally denominated in Chinese
Renminbi (“RMB”) and United States dollar ("US$").
These currencies are not the functional currencies
of the Group entities to which these balances relate.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising
from the movements in the exchange rates of these
different currencies against the functional currencies
of the Group entities. The Group manages its foreign
currency risks by closely monitoring the movement
of the foreign currency rates. Most of the Group's
business transactions are denominated in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$"), US$ and RMB.

The Group considers there is no significant exposure
to foreign exchange fluctuations as long as the Hong
Kong-United States dollar exchange rate remains
pegged. However, the Group is exposed to fluctuation
in exchange rates of RMB. At 31 March 2014, if HK$
had weakened/strengthened by 3% (2013: 3%) against
RMB with all other variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been HK$2,935,000 (2013:
HK$4,125,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of RMB-
denominated receivables, payables and borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

Except for the cash held at banks, the Group has no
other significant interest bearing assets. The Group'’s
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

At 31 March 2014, if interest rates on cash held at
banks had been 25 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the
year would have been approximately HK$832,000 (2013:
HK$940,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest income on cash at banks.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk relates
primarily to variable-rate borrowings of HK$301,000,000
(2013: HK$327,600,000). Borrowings at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk which
is partially offset by cash deposit held at variable
rates. It is the Group's policy to keep the majority of
borrowings at floating interest rate so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk section of
this note. The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of market interest rates
arising from the Group's deposits and borrowings.

At 31 March 2014, if interest rates had been 25 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, interest payment on floating rate borrowing
would have been approximately HK$753,000 (2013:
HK$819,000) higher/lower. Interest expenses on
these floating rate borrowings would be capitalised in
accordance with the Group's capitalisation rate. The
Group anticipates that the impact on profit of the Group
resulting from changes in interest expenses capitalised
would have been approximately HK$253,000 (2013:
HK$719,000).
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE=ZT—MF=A=+—HIEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(@) Market risk (Continued)
(ifi) Price risk

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss represent investments in listed equity
securities and are measured at fair value at each
balance sheet date. Therefore, the Group is exposed to
equity securities price risk. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a diversified portfolio of
investments with different characteristics.

The sensitivity analysis below is prepared to illustrate
the Group's exposure to equity price risk at the
reporting date. A 10% change is used when reporting
the price risk internally to the management. If the
price of the respective equity instruments had been
10% higher/lower, the net unrealised gain on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss would
have been increased/decreased and the profit for
the year would have been increased/decreased by
approximately HK$1,818,000 (2013: HK$2,371,000).

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk mainly arises from trade and other receivables,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, and cash
and cash equivalents.

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group will place
its cash in banks and financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

As at 31 March 2014, the top five customers accounted
for approximately 68% (2013: 69%) of the Group's trade
receivables balance.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 H#E=—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

Most of the Group’s customers do not have independent
rating. Before accepting any new customer, where available
at reasonable cost, the Group obtains credit report from
commercial information provider to assess the potential
customer’s credit and defines credit limits by customer.
Credit limits of customers are reviewed periodically. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has established credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts.

For certain trade receivables in connection with sales
of properties, the Group has the right to repossess the
properties when the repayment of trade receivables of
properties sales is in default. The arrangement has mitigated
the credit risk for the customers which cannot be assessed
through our past experience and other factors to prove their
credit standing.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants, if any borrowing has been drawn.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s bank
borrowings, based on undiscounted cash flows (include
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet date)
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

Specifically, for bank borrowings which contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s
sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow based
on the earliest period in which the Group can be required to
pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional
rights to call the loans with immediate effect. The maturity
analysis for other bank borrowings is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=F—NFE=A=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 6.
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

BismEkEEEEERBK (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) R"EBES(E)
The Group's financial liabilities have contractual maturities as REEMBEE A LD B A
follows: W
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
R2014E3831A RN1BEIA3NA
Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows
HEAAM-RERRER BB AT - RERR S
Between  Between Between  Between
Less than 1and2 2and 5 Less than Tand2 2and5
0On demand 1year years years Total  Ondemand 1year years years Total
REX -Ej  -EEWE WEEDE ag TR —#N —HEWE  @EERE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Thr Tén Tén TR Thr ThT T T Fhn ThL
Trade and other payables EREZREH
EREN - 214,400 - - 214,400 - 073 - - 078
Borrowings and interest & R A& 13
payments 47,600 87,524 142,675 38,538 316,337 190,207 46,261 43381 78120 357,969
Amount due to [t
an associate AR - 2,961 - - 2,961 - 2581 - - 2581
47,600 304,885 142,675 38,538 533,698 190,207 209,565 43331 78120 561273

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank
borrowings with a repayment on demand clause based on
agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreement.
The amounts include interest payments computed using
contractual rates. As a result, these amounts were greater
than the amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time band in
the maturity analysis above. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors do not consider that it is
probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such bank
borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreement.

TRBIIFBREREEGROR
TEERBER BEAEZ HEE
RESRRIELZEIHB D - BREE
TEEHERG QN ERFTEZHE
e Bt - FSESREHA
DR RER] BHE—KPRE
ZEH o st RAKEZ BB -
EXEW TRAVITHITERERAE
ERHOEIEHE - EF101E - FER
TERSRBEER BRI 21HE
ERAHMER -

Maturity Analysis — Bank borrowings
subject to a repayment on demand clause
based on scheduled repayments
BB M- RIBGEER B EEN
FTEREREERRNRITEE

Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and
On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years Total
RER —F5R —SZEZWME WEEEE HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FHTT FHT FAT
31 March 2014 20143 A31H - 3,377 3,326 45,023 51,726
31 March 2013 20133 H31H - 43,913 42,973 103,321 190,207
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ2—T—NFE=A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows, which may differ from the carrying
values of the liabilities at the balance sheet date.

Fair value estimation

The different levels of the fair value measurement hierarchy
have been defined as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

] Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are equity securities that are traded in an active market.
Closing stock prices are readily available from active
market and are used as being representative of fair value.
As at 31 March 2014, the Group and the Company have
these financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
of HK$21,775,000(2013: HK$28,396,000) and Nil (2013:
HK$720,000) respectively, which were classified as level 1 for
the purpose of measuring fair value.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=—Z—NE=A=+—HItFE

REVENUE

Revenue represents (i) the amounts received and receivable from
customers in respect of goods sold less returns and allowances;
(ii) the proceeds from the sale of properties during the year; and
(i) the amounts received and receivable in respect of leasing of
investment properties.

A

WABRNETEFZERENRER
KAT L 2 2 Y R YRIBDH R ¢ (i) F
NEEMEZ SR Kii)EEKRE
W2 B R RGRIA -

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Sales of pearls and jewellery PR EHE 268,473 261,411
Sales of properties ES S 39,426 159,375
Rental income LW A 43,481 40,399
351,380 461,185

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the executive directors that are used to make
strategic decisions.

The Group has two reportable operating segments. The Group’s
operating businesses are structured and managed separately
according to the nature of the operations and the product
perspectives. Each of the Group'’s reportable operating segment
represents a strategic business unit that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from the other reportable operating
segment. Details of the reportable operating segment are as
follows:

(i)  Pearls and jewellery — Purchasing, processing, designing,
production and wholesale distribution of pearls and
jewellery.

(i) Property — Development, sales and leasing of properties.

7 EHER

A o BAR 91T BB B AR R
R RERTAEENE -

AEBEAMERREEEDE - $%@
BREFEERERFEDFER
i@f’K%@ZiTI—H&E %@"*Bﬁi%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE—ZT—NE=A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. oHER (&)
BRAZEEBZ O BEMEIIAT

BZ2014%F3A31ALEE:

Segment information about these businesses is presented below:

For the year ended 31 March 2014:

Pearls and
jewellery Property Total
LHR%E LY st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTExT TERT
Profit and loss items wHREEER
Segment revenue AL ON 268,473 84,297 352,770
Inter-segment revenue Bz A - (1,390) (1,390)
Revenue from external customers REMBEE ZWA 268,473 82,907 351,380
Segment operating profit D EhE B 29,466 114,262 143,728
Finance income U s 585 4,492 5,077
Finance costs B S Ak AN - (989) (989)
Share of profit of an associate FEIE—RE & D EEF - 29 29
Segment profit before income tax ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬂu 2 ED A 30,051 117,794 147,845
Income tax expense BRX (1,990) (49,790) (51,780)
Segment profit for the year REEDEHF] 28,061 68,004 96,065
As at 31 March 2014 ®2014%3/831H
Balance sheet items BEEAERER
Total segment assets DEBEE 329,424 1,753,981 2,083,405
Total segment assets include: DEEEEM
Investment in an associate R—KEE AR ZIRE - 176 176
Additions to non-current assets FERBNVEE 2N
(other than deferred BREEFEHEEIN)
income tax assets) 3,019 50 3,069
Total segment liabilities DEBEE 34,992 866,526 901,518
Other information: HiER
Depreciation e (3,014) (3,942) (6,956)
Amortisation ey - (8) (8)
Increase in fair values of investment R &M% kIR E Y%
properties and investment NREEE
properties under construction - 80,950 80,950
Gain on disposals of property, HEME BMERRKREZ
plant and equipment WA 80 64 144
Reversal of provision for JE IS 2 R (B 4 o] B
impairment of trade receivables 6,797 - 6,797
Provision for inventory BETFERE
obsolescence (1,357) - (1,357)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE—T—ME=A=+—HIt&FE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. 2HMER (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2013:

HZE2013F3HA31BILFEE :

Pearls and
jewellery Property Total
LRSS ES HBET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
Profit and loss items AR EEEE
Segment revenue 2 EIA 261,411 200,944 462,355
Inter-segment revenue 553302 A = (1,170) (1,170)
Revenue from external customers REIMPRE ZWA 261,411 199,774 461,185
Segment operating profit DEEE R 11,207 104,530 115,731
Finance income B s 648 13,578 14,226
Finance costs B AR - (12,496) (12,496)
Share of profit of an associate FEE—KEZ AR EIE = 23 23
Segment profit before income tax [Sééﬁﬁﬁ%mu A 11,849 105,635 117,484
Income tax expense BRAY (1,154) (46,752) (47,906)
Segment profit for the year REEF 7D E %) 10,695 58,883 69,578
As at 31 March 2013 M201353A31H
Balance sheet items BEEBEBRER
Total segment assets DEBEEE 348,855 1,617,144 1,965,999
Total segment assets include: DEBEERE
Investment in an associate R—RKBE AR 2IRE - 144 144
Additions to non-current assets 35 ,‘ @J BEZEM
(other than deferred income BEFTSFEEIN)
tax assets) 2,480 90 2,570
Total segment liabilities DEEEE 33,627 784,466 818,093
Other information: HiBER
Depreciation e (4,801) (2,874) (7,675)
Amortisation i = ) ®)
Impairment loss on prepaid lease BNHERIE O RERE
payment - (5,704) (5,704)
Increase in fair values of investment  REMEREZREME
properties and investment NAEREE
properties under construction - 46,638 46,638
Gain on disposals of investment HEREYEZBA
properties and investment
properties under development - 9,577 9,577
Gain on disposals of property, HEME BMERRKREZ
plant and equipment uﬁz)\ 407 - 407
Reversal of provision for impairment — FEUCE 2 2 Jol (B 15 [ 1%
of trade receivables 3,763 - 3,763
Reversal of provision for inventory i@ HA77 & B4 < o B
obsolescence 3,636 - 3,636
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 H#E=—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. NEEHR(E

] & 0 BRER P 1S TR AT A e AR SR B B
PRSBAE N 2 BRI T

A reconciliation of the reportable segments’ profit before income
tax to the Group's profit before income tax is as follows:

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Total profit before income tax Al RS 7 EBBR FT1S TR A AR T
for reportable segments 147,845 117,484

Fair value change in financial assets BRERREANENRZ

at fair value through profit or loss BBRERESR (2,991) 4,933
Dividend income % B iz 1,231 1,590
Share options expenses BRI X (171) 379)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries & KB A R E 1R (1) (2,814)
Corporate finance costs, net RAIA A FER (3,943) (1,857)
Corporate expenses NEILE (4,594) (6,886)
Profit before income tax of the Group ANER BERR AT 1S B B A 137,376 112,077

A reconciliation of the reportable segments’ assets to the Group's

AREDHBEERAREREE 2 HK

total assets is as follows: N
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Total for reportable segments A RS o SR 4R %R 2,083,405 1,965,999
Unallocated: RoBC -
Corporate assets NEEE 11,289 6,303
Financial assets at fair value through BB AR ETEY
profit or loss B EE 21,775 28,396
Current income tax recoverable AU B BN HAFT 15 80 - 991
Total assets of the Group REBEBEE 2,116,469 2,001,689
A reconciliation of the reportable segments’ liabilities to the RESHEEEAEERBEBEZEHE
Group's total liabilities is as follows: LU
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Total for reportable segments Al ¥R ZpAE%E 901,518 818,093
Unallocated: RO
Corporate liabilities NGIN=RE 141,243 180,754
Total liabilities of the Group rEEBAEE 1,042,761 998,847
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

55 W R
For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE=ZT—MF=A=+—HIEFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. NEEHR (&)
The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group's revenue KAGBEZRNES - AEEKRBES
from external customers derived from Hong Kong and places other REBAINGTT 2 INBEE 2 WA D B
than Hong Kong are HK$21,317,000 (2013: HK$26,487,000) and #$21,317,000% 7T (20134 : 26,487,000
HK$330,063,000 (2013: HK$434,698,000) respectively. % JT ) 330,063,000 JT (20134 :
434,698,000 7T) °
The Group's two operating segments operate in the main AREBRMEALESIEE TEHER
geographical areas and of which the revenues are disclosed as HWAWELT ¢
follows:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FET
Europe BN 83,576 106,267
Mainland China (excluding Hong Kong) FERKE(TEEES) 109,435 196,641
Hong Kong BB 21,317 26,487
North America JEEM 79,800 67,472
Other Asian countries H MBI R 49,768 55,612
Others HAm 7,484 8,706
351,380 461,185
The total non-current assets excluding investment in an associate NREBREBUIINE T Z2IERBE
and deferred income tax assets located in Hong Kong and places ERBE(TERER—FREBEARZ2KE
other than Hong Kong are HK$216,725,000 (2013: HK$202,825,000) RIEEFRGEHEE) 5 Al /216,725,000
and HK$971,463,000 (2013: HK$891,812,000) respectively. & 70 (20134F : 202,825,000 7T ) &
971,463,000 T (20134 : 891,812,000
BIT) °
Revenue from the transactions with each single customer HE2014F K2013F3 A3 HILFE -
amounted to less than 10% of total revenue of the Group for the HRBEREER Sz WA EE @l
years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013. = AH10% ©
OTHER INCOME 9. Hibzs
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FET
Dividend income from financial assets BRI AR EYEY
at fair value through profit or loss MBEEEE 2 REWE 1,231 1,590
Others Hi 452 431
1,683 2,021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Y5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 H#E=—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

10. OTHER GAINS — NET

10. EfBl A — F5

2014 2013
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Exchange losses B 51 518 (407) (1,679)
Fair value change in financial assets BBBRSRAENRS
at fair value through profit or loss MBRERELE (2,991) 4,933
Gain on disposals of investment properties &R E MR RERIREY %
and investment properties under ZHIA
development - 9,577
Gain on disposals of property, HEME « BE&REZEA
plant and equipment 144 407
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 41)  HEMBAE 2 EE (HE41) (1 2,814)
Penalty income SR 2,505 -
Others Hith 2,884 3,997
2,134 14,421
11. EXPENSES BY NATURE 1. BMEESEZHAX
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Costs of inventories and completed FERER TR KA
properties for sales 164,402 270,565
Employee benefit expenses (including EBEBANAX (BREEEHE)
directors’ emoluments) (note 12) (FF5E12) 81,540 77,886
Auditor's remuneration ZERTEN S 2,080 1,843
Depreciation of property, M RN E
plant and equipment 6,956 7,675
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TETHE RIS 8 3
Impairment loss on prepaid lease payments Ta1{ 78 & 2 IE R & 1B - 5,704
Reversal of provision for impairment of JE U S R R (B 1B A T
trade receivables (note 28) (FF5E28) (6,797) (3,763)
Provision/(Reversal of provision) BEPGFERE(BEZBE)
for inventory obsolescence (note 26) (FfF7E26) 1,357 (3,636)
Operating lease rental on rented premises HYME KLHEERS 8,470 9,202
Others Hi 40,929 46,601
Total cost of sales, selling and SUEE Y AN SN R 1T L 4 5E
administrative expenses 298,945 412,090
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE=ZT—MF=A=+—HIEFE

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 12. EERABAZ(BREEMHNE)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Salaries, wages and other benefits 4 - TEMEMIBER 73,953 73,706
Pension costs-defined contribution plans ~ &H#Z& FREMRE 2Rt E

and social security costs RERRC A 7,416 3,801
Employee share options expenses & B BB AR e R 2 (M43 34(c))

(note 34(c)) 171 379

81,540 77,886

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S 13. EERESREBAEBZHME
EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the emoluments of the directors and the five highest BEERAERSFMA LT M BN
paid individuals are as follows: ™
(@) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM=E
2014
Performance
Salaries related  Retirement Other
and other incentive benefit benefits
Name of director Fees allowances  payment contributions (note ¢) Total
#e% EES B Rt A
S ne 0013 o BRI (Kzc) st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing PNARE - 3,000 - 15 1,704 4719
Mr. Cheng Tai Po iyt - 1,500 - 6 - 1,506
M. Yan Sau Man, Amy BEZME - 1,800 1,400 15 - 3,215
Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman (note &) B35/ (HizFa) - 221 - 9 - 230
Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas (note b)  Z$83% %4 (Bif3ED) 56 - - - - 56
M. Fung Yat Sang BRERE 20 - - - - 220
Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex BHEE 220 - - - - 220
Mr. Kiu Wai Ming BlEREE 220 - - _ _ 220

716 6,521 1,400 45 1,704 10,386
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ2—T—NFE=A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 1. EEREREBAEZHME

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (&)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) () EEf< (&)
2013
Performance
Salaries related  Retirement QOther
and other incentive benefit benefits
Name of director Fees  allowances payment  contributions (note ¢) Total
He R BRR BRI EthigH
BEE ik A2kt B Re R (MizEc) @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing RS E - 3,600 - 15 1692 5,307

Mr. Cheng Tai Po gRELE - 1,800 - 7 560 2367

Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy BAZME - 1,800 1,400 15 - 3215

Mr. Zhang Huagiao (note o) SRk e (Hizd) - 71 - 1 - 72

Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas FEREE 200 - - - - 200

Mr. Fung Yat Sang BRERE 20 - - - - 20

Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex AEERE 20 - - - - 20

Mr. Kiu Wai Ming BRALE 20 - - - - 20

860 7271 1,400 3B 2,252 11,821

Notes: B ek

(@  Ms. Cheng Ka Man, Carman was appointed as director on 2 (@ BEIUNEMR2013FIR2HE
September 2013. ZIARES -

()  Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas resigned as director on 11 July () FERSLEEN2013F7 A 11 B8
2013. TE=-

(c)  Other benefits consist of approximate ratable value and € EHEiEMNeEEEMEZBLORE
rent of the properties for accommodation and other related R ERES A R H A
expenses. B -

(d  Mr. Zhang Huagiao was appointed as director on 20 d  FREBEER2011FE9F20 B
September 2011 and resigned as director on 3 April 2012. ZREAESE WN201294A83

HEEE=E -
(e)  During the year ended 31 March 2014, a director agreed to e #HE2014F3ANAB IEFE -

waive his emoluments of HK$2,100,000 (2013: HK$1,800,000)
voluntarily.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE=ZT—MF=A=+—HIEFE

13. DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 1. EEREREBAEZHME

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (#8)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEEEHFMAL
The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the FN - AEBREESTFMALE
Group for the year include three (2013: three) directors of B=ZZQ013F : ZR)ARAE
the Company whose emoluments are set out in note 13(a) T HEZHESFBEN XX
above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2013: two) 13(a) * ME A (20134 : W)
individual are as follows: AT ZMEFERT
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEMEAEF] 2,900 2,691
Pension costs-defined contribution plans &£ & FRAMKETEI R
and social security costs e R 30 29
Share options expenses BERRAE R 2 171 379
3,101 3,099
The number of the remaining individuals whose BN TEHMIBE  BsR AT AR
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: U
Number of employees
EEA"
2014 2013
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 # 7T % 1,500,000 % 7T 1
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 # 7T Z 2,000,000 % 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % 7T = 2,500,000 45 7T - 1
2 2
During the year ended 31 March 2014, no emoluments @:KE%TEA¢3H 3;5_11{3 R f
were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals, %Eﬂf“‘ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂfﬁMAi( =
including directors, as inducement to join or upon joining the Eiﬂ%)gﬁfﬂﬂ@“i ' VE’;%E& 3'
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2013: Nil). AR IOAAR SR B 2 B =X

BEBLAB(E (201346 - &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Y5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ2—T—NFE=A=+—HILFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

14. FRI8HiRAxX

2014 2013
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHIT
Current income tax: BNERFT1S AR -
Hong Kong profits tax EEMER 2,832 764
PRC corporate income tax TSR 9,727 16,883
PRC land appreciation tax AR 1 M (AR 3,799 9,184
16,358 26,831
Under/(over)-provision in prior year: BEFEREETNR(GBEEE)
Hong Kong profits tax EEMER 589 (137)
PRC corporate income tax R ZEFTIS R (490) (3,006)
99 (3,143)
Deferred income tax: BEEFTEHL
Net charge for current year NEERZFE 35,323 24,122
51,780 47,810

BHRMNEH

BEAFERIDIBEARFE 2 HaH ER
SR TR R 16.5% (20134 : 16.5% )51 ©

HEEERE
ERTRAEXBLELPRCEMRS

HMERBIRITAD - 2ERBAEMN
AEZEFHERPURMNIRERATEE -

Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2013:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year.

PRC corporate income tax

The PRC corporate income tax in respect of operations in Mainland
China is calculated at the applicable tax rates on the estimated
assessable profits for the year based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Withholding tax on distributed/undistributed E2IK/ KRR EFFENB
profits

R2008F1 A1 FE - BRIED IR
TR A - REIBOERE BB QA
REERNBEFBERIINERZERD
Al EC Y BB AR 10% TRFO

The PRC tax law imposes a withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced
by a tax treaty, for dividends distributed by PRC subsidiaries to
its immediate holding company outside the PRC for earnings
generated beginning on 1 January 2008.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk Y5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=F—NFE=A=+—HItFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
PRC land appreciation tax

Land appreciation tax in the PRC is levied on properties developed
by the Group for sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, which under the applicable
regulations is calculated based on the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including cost of land use
rights, borrowing costs and all property development expenditures.

The amount of taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to

14. FRSHEX (&)
B+ 3th (B B

PRI T IR ER T AN R BB R AF
E2WHE  BRET I FHEUNRERX
30% Z 60% U - At ETETNREE
RZRE N EMEMEKAEA
RS (B3 fE AR « 55K
AEFEMERRMAS)E -

7N 4F 2 W TR A S2 BB AT 1S B A s A1) 2

the profit before income tax as follows: BRAODR :
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
F@xT FET
Profit before income tax KR BT 15 %54 BT 4 ) 137,376 112,077
Tax calculated at domestic income tax rate 127 PSR E = 16.5%
0f 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) (20134 : 16.5%) st E 2 Fi1A 22,667 18,493
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries  fEEfh FEARE R KL 2 B A7)
operating in other jurisdictions TRABE 22 8,725 7,610
Tax effect of: Mg
Land appreciation tax T I (E R 11,896 2,901
Expenses that are not deductible AR 2 BRI R S
for tax purpose 5,912 2,806
Income not subject to tax AR WA (6,120) (2,128)
Derecognition of deferred tax asset #2 I HERR 5T Al 2 FERR IR AT
recognised previously HIEEE - (712)
Utilisation of tax loss not recognised E) A IR R R IE S 18
previously - (701)
Tax loss for which no deferred income MARFERELEFBHREE Y
tax asset was recognised HiIaEE 945 693
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFERETR (BEEE) 99 (3,143)
Others Hi 960 142
45,084 25,961
Land appreciation tax + IR E R 3,799 9,184
Withholding tax on distributable profits AEBHEHWEBRRZAHIK
on the Group’s PRC subsidiaries i M TEH R IE 2,897 12,665
Income tax expense for the year KEZMEHAX 51,780 47,810
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 H#E=—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

15.

16.

17.

PROFITS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company are dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$2,505,000 (2013: profits of HK$146,120,000).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company of approximately HK$68,463,000 (2013: HK$48,244,000)
and the weighted average number of 1,280,190,000 (2013:
1,275,930,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amount for the
year ended 31 March 2014 is based on the profit for the year
attributable to equity holders of the Company of approximately
HK$68,463,000 and 1,293,734,000 ordinary shares, which
represented the weighted average number of 1,280,190,000
ordinary shares in issue during the year and the weighted average
number of 13,544,000 ordinary shares deemed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all the
outstanding share options during the year.

Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share are the
same for the year ended 31 March 2013 as the conversion of
convertible instruments are antidilutive.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2014. For the year ended 31 March
2013, interim dividend, special interim dividend and final dividend
of 1 HK cent per share (totalling HK$12,802,000), 15 HK cents
per share (totalling HK$192,028,000) and 2 HK cents per share
(totalling HK$25,604,000), respectively, were declared and paid to
shareholders.

The dividend paid during the year ended 31 March 2014 was
HK$25,604,000 (2013: HK$486,472,000).
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15.

16.

17.

AR R A im A

RABHEHRERACRIE 2 AR FIE
[ 15 &5 18 /& 2,505,000 7T (2013 4F © i
F1146,120,000% 7T) ©

BRAF

BREARABF IR AN DR REELER
F E i A #968,463,00078 JT (20134 :
48,244,000 ) RAFEE BT BR
2 DNAE 988 1,280,190,000 M (2013 4F -
1,275,930,000 i) 5+ & -

HE2014F383NBLEEFE SER#
SEE R TR AN R IR R 4G A i R
#768,463,0007% JT & 1,293,734,000 f% &
BRAE AIRRAFEDBITLER
2 hNEE S 15 881,280,190,000 M Ko 7 4F &
FTA M AR TR B S WA EE /T E
WREEEERITT 2 EBRINEFHER
13,544,000 f% °

HE2013F3A831BILFE » ERER
EFHEERFER  BAEBABRE
TEHEERESHSE -

IR E

EEQUTERREE2014F3 8318
IFFERMN RS - E = 201343 A
MNBALEE  ERARESIR &R
BB~ BRI HAR B MR HIR B2 B F
A% 178 1L (& $£12,802,000% 7T ) ~ & B
15581l (& +£ 192,028,000 7T ) & &A% 2
Al (A $£25,604,00058 7))

HE2014F3A31BIEFEZERRE
/525,604,000 7T (2013 4 : 486,472,000
BIT) e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

55 W R
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=F—NFE=A=+—HItFE
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REW*
The Group
rER
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHIT
At fair value BARE
At beginning of the year REA) 902,342 869,590
Disposals during the year FRLE - (10,712)
Increase in fair values NAEEE 74,487 43,464
Exchange differences PE =R 19,686 -
At end of the year RER 996,515 902,342

@)

As at 31 March 2014, an investment property amounting to
HK$122,000,000 (2013: HK$110,800,000) were pledged as
security for bank loan facilities granted to the Group while
certain investment properties amounting to HK$330,962,000
(2013: HK$300,115,000) were pledged as security for other
loan (note 32).

As at 31 March 2014, certain investment properties
amounting to HK$29,198,000 (2013: HK$28,066,000) were
pledged as security for a loan granted by a PRC bank to an
independent third party (note 40).

The Group’s investment properties were revalued by DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited at 31 March 2014, independent
firms of professional property valuers, on market value basis
and by adopting term yield in the range of 10% to 10.5%.
The valuations were arrived at by reference to comparable
market transactions and where appropriate, on the basis of
capitalisation of net income.

R201443 8318 » (& {&122000,000
7 7T(20134F : 1108000005 7T ) A
KEMEERAEBERMNR
TERREERERR mME
330,962,000 7T (20134 :
300,115,000 70 ) & FIRE Y
(¥R EMERIEAER R (M
32) e

R2014E3A3MB ETREY
% (B{H 29,198,000 7T (2013 4F :
28,066,000/ 7T ) B 1R ¥ — R &
BRTRH T —8BYE=NE

Eon
N

REBEKREMEN2014F3H 31
B2z EBAET BB BEEGERM
BERITERARIEMEEERK
AN F10%E10.5% 2 FH B K o
B WEHENLBAIE RN
BRSGR (WER)RFREREFTE
AHEEET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ2—T—NFE=A=+—HILFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 18. REYE (&)
The Group’s interests in investment properties at their net book REBRREMES 2 R/ ITAREF
values are analysed as follows: BEONTF :
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Land and buildings situated in Hong Kong A& B LATHER A 10 &= 50 &
and held under leases of between 10 Z KR 2 T FEF
and 50 years 122,000 110,800
Land and buildings situated in the PRC R B AR A 10E 504
and held under leases of between 10 Z KR 2 T FEF
and 50 years 770,187 691,174
Land and buildings situated in the PRC P B B SAFH HARR 18 50 4
and held under leases of over 50 years Z KR 2 T FEF 104,328 100,368
996,515 902,342
19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER 19. EEKREYX
CONSTRUCTION
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
At fair value RARE
At beginning of the year REA]) 64,452 68,880
Disposals ke - (7,602)
Increase in fair value NAEHEE 6,463 3,174
Exchange differences VE =58 1,581 -
At end of the year RER 72,496 64,452
Less: Properties under development B D EARBEE TR
classified as current assets S (4,960) -
Non-current portion JEMBNEL D 67,536 64,452
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE=ZT—MF=A=+—HIEFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER 19. EZREWE (&)
CONSTRUCTION (CONTINUED)
The Group's investment properties under construction at 31 March AEBEZREWEN2014F3A31H
2014 were revalued by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an ZEEIHABYEEMEGHEMBER
independent firm of professional property valuer, on market value TERARIZMEREESM  WEMHE
basis. The valuations were arrived at by reference to comparable T2RAIELBMISR S R (HER) &
market transactions and where appropriate, on the basis of FWE BT EREEETE

capitalisation of net income.

The Group’s interests in investment properties under construction REERERREMED 2 EZER
at their net book values are analysed as follows: EFESTOT :
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FHET

Land and buildings situated in the PRC R E B AMEE A 10E504F

and held under leases of between KT E 2 T HAETF

10 and 50 years 20,034 18,819
Land and buildings situated in the PRC RZFA A B B DARE B8 38 50 4

and held under leases of over 50 years ZHHFE 2 T FEF 47,502 45,633

67,536 64,452
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ2—T—NFE=A=+—HILFE

20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 20. BERPYxE
Properties under development held as current assets represent BERHEEZERRPYEIUBEHE
properties which are developed with an intention for future sale. EAENMERZE
The Group
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
At beginning of the year REH) - 51,038
Additions NE 127,212 6,052
Interest capitalised FEERE 9,729 2,130
Transferred from Investment properties ERATEREME
under construction 4,960 -
Transferred to completed properties A ERE 2R T
held for sale - (59,220)
Exchange differences PE R =% 851 -
At end of the year RER 142,752 -
The Group's interests in properties under development at their net AREEBREZEERMER I ERIZER
book values are analysed as follows: EEESWWT
The Group
AEH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Land and buildings situated in the PRC and iz 7 e B B ATH BB @ 50 6 2
held under leases of over 50 years HAAFE 2 T FIEF 142,752 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE=ZT—MF=A=+—HIEFE

21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 21. Y% - BERRE

Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor
buildings improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles Total
HELHE e B
EF ETHE  BEREE ZERRHG RE @t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THTL TATL TATL TATL TATL
The Group hiy-1]
Cost or valuation RABREE
At 1 April 2012 R2012E4 818 111,683 15,281 33,165 9750 8,710 178,589
Additions AE - - 1492 332 746 2,570
Disposals e - - (157) (326) (1,480) (1,963)
Increase in fair values AR EEE 8,045 - - - - 8,045
At 31 March 2013 R2013%£3 8318 119,728 15,281 34.500 9756 7976 187,241
Additions AE = 658 1,310 613 488 3,069
Disposals HE - - (2.897) (13 (554) (39¢4)
Decrease in fair value AAEE (3312) = = = - (3312)
Exchange differences ERER 743 - 22 118 153 129
At 31 March 2014 R2014E3A31R 117,159 15,939 33,195 9,974 8,003 184,330
Accumulated depreciation RiHE
At 1 April 2012 B2012E4 818 - 14473 28,180 8,805 6,789 58,247
Depreciation charge WEZH 3,445 787 2206 500 77 7675
Eliminated on disposals I ERH 3 - - (143) (329) (1,480) (1,948)
Eliminated on revaluation e 6 (3,445) - - - - (3445)
At 31 March 2013 R2013E3A31R = 15,260 30,263 8,980 6,026 60,529
Depreciation charge HEXH 3,603 144 1,904 395 910 6,95
Eliminated on disposals e = - (2,709) (389) (554) (3692
Eliminated on revaluation SfhEHE (3,603) = = = - (3,603)
Exchange differences ERES - - 265 107 133 505
At 31 March 2014 #201453A318 - 15,404 29,683 9,093 6,515 60,695
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2014 R2014E3A31R 117,159 535 3512 881 1,548 123,635
At 31 March 2013 R2013E3A31HE 119,728 2 4237 776 1,950 126,712

RAEBBRARRIA « —F—MFEFH



o 4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Y5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 H#E=—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

21. M1% - BERRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
The net book value of leasehold land and buildings shown above LA E T RIEFREFEBRE
comprises:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Land and buildings situated in Hong Kong (2 A &S BLAFAEIA10E50FE 2
and held under leases of between 10 HAFE 2 T HRETF
and 50 years 91,000 87,600
Buildings situated in the PRC and held AR B AR 10206 2
under leases of between 10 and 50 years — FHAFH 21EF 26,159 32,128
117,159 119,728

As at 31 March 2014, a leasehold building amounting to
HK$91,000,000 (2013: Nil) was pledged as security for bank loan
facilities granted to the Group.

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued by DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited at 31 March 2014, an independent
professional property valuer, on a market value basis. The
valuation was arrived at by reference to comparable market
transactions. The increase in value arising from revaluation of
the land and buildings of HK$291,000 (2013: increase in value
HK$11,490,000) has been charged to the property revaluation
reserve.

If the leasehold land and buildings had not revalued, they would
have been included in these consolidated financial statements at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss
of HK$47,319,000 (2013: HK$49,012,000).

22. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

M2014%3 A318 + B {£91,000,00058
T(2013%F : E)WBAEBFERAEE
EERRRITERBEERTMS -

AEBHE T MEFR 201453 A 31
Bz EBEHBLEEYEGHEMBE
PITHRARIEMEEESH - LWEMH
BEN2RUELEMERFEE - Efy
i AR FE A 2 A {EIE{E 291,0008
TL(20134F « AL EHE{E 11,490,000 7T)
Bt AESEFHER -

WERE L RIEFWHEETEE  H
EREXNANERR;ITERRESE
47,319,000 7T (20134 : 49,012,000
TL)ET ARG B EIREA -

22. FENAHEERE

The Group
rEH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Prepaid land lease payments (note) B+ E F0E () 154 162

Note: Prepaid land lease payments are amortised over the lease period
of the related land. Amortisation expense has been charged to
administrative expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bk Y5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE=ZT—MF=A=+—HIEFE

22. ANHEERE (&)

The Group
rEH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
At beginning of the year REA) 162 5,874
Amortisation By (8) t)
Impairment loss BIEEE - (5,704)
At end of the year RER 154 162
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHT
The net book values of prepaid land lease  F&{J T A EXIE 7 BRE E(E
payments are analysed as follows: DT
Situated in the PRC held under leases URFBE AR A10E504F
of between 10 and 50 years ZHEOFE 154 162
23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 23. R—XBE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
At beginning of the year REH] 144 121
Share of profit of an associate FEAE —RHE & A RlE 29 23
Exchange differences bE i =58 3 -
At end of the year RER 176 144
Current liabilities: MENBE
Amount due to an associate (note) FEN — KB N ml g aE (MY sE) 2,961 2,581

Note: The amount due to an associate is interest-free, unsecured and has
no fixed repayment terms. The carrying amount approximates to its

fair value and is denominated in RMB.

st : BN—FKEE2ARFERRE B
MMEEEEFE - REEEERR

EEE - WAARKEDIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ2—T—NFE=A=+—HILFE

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 23. R—XBEQTRIZ2RE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Unaudited financial information of the associate for the years ZEE N RIRNBIE 2014 2013463 A
ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 was summarised as follows: 31 B IEFE 2 R EZ YIS E B a0
T
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#BT FHEIT
Assets EE 4,617 4,089
Liabilities afE (3,735) (3,371)
Equity = 882 718
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHEIT
Revenue WA 3,219 3,181
Profit for the year REE R 145 114
At 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group's investment in an MR2014F K 20133 A318 » "EER
associate is as follows: BN a2 IEWT

Proportion of

ownership
Place of establishment/ interest %
Name of Company operation Class of shares held #EHEE#ERS Principal activities
NGIE BRI ¥ B P 43 %8 Bl e (%) TEEHR
Zhuji Pan-Asia Property People’s Republic of China  Registered capital 20% Property management
Management RMB500,000
Company Limited
EETTMEERARAR HEARLNE HMERAR MEERE
500,000 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk Y5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE=ZT—MF=A=+—HIEFE

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

. RE AR 2 RE R EWHE

RNEFIE

The Company
PN |
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
THxT T
Non-current assets: IEMBNEEE :

Unlisted shares, at cost JE LT - TERANE 211,245 211,074
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NGIE /S 281,513 282,049
Current assets: MENEFE -

Amounts due from subsidiaries AR EPNGIE S 10,036 36,131

The carrying value of the unlisted shares is based on the book
values of the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries attributable
to the Group as at the date on which the Company became
the holding company of the Group pursuant to the corporate
reorganisation in 1997.

The non-current amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and not repayable within one year. The carrying
amounts approximate to their fair values and are denominated in
Hong Kong dollar.

The current amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. The carrying
amounts approximate to their fair values and are denominated in
Hong Kong dollar.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2014 are set out
in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

FETEMZEEELDREAKEER
1997 FET R B EHRR - ARBKRA
SEZERAREREEGENBLRZA
MEEREFEE -

FETR B R UK PH B R B RIR T AR - R
ERBAR-—FARER - FEERER
REMRE - XAETIIE -

mEEAHE AR RAETIEER 28
KMEREEESRY - REEEEQRENR
& WAETTIHIE -

AAFIMBRAFTNR2014E3 8318 25
BENRE PSRRI -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 H#E=—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

25. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The followings are the major deferred income tax liabilities/(assets)
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the years
ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

25. IEEFTSH

REEREZE2014F R 201343 A31H
HEEERZTERIEMEHAE (B
BE)REZBMT

Revaluation  Accelerated  Unrealised Unrecognised
of tax profit in revenue  Withholding
properties  depreciation  inventories (note a) tax Others Total
MEHE AEE  ARIMA
g & HEER (Hita) RMBE ) @it
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TR T T Thn Thn Thn
The Group pig-oL |
At1 April 2012 RN1ELR1H 162,066 (635) (2.067) (14.431) - (826) 144,107
Net charge/(credit) to consolidated 18,/ (Gt A) & MER
income statement FE 11,015 464 (474 - 12,665 15 1122
Net charge to equity fekag 2044 - - - - - 204
At 31 March 2013 R2013E3A318 175,125 ) 2541) (14.431) 12,665 (374) 170,273
Net charge/(credi) to consolidated 18/ (G A )&l =
income statement FE 33,650 81 (7122 - 2897 (583) 35,323
Net charge to equity IR Za m - - - - - m
Exchange differences EAES 5,051 () (19 (351) - (14) 4666
At 31 March 2014 R2014E3831H 214099 91) (3282) (14,782) 15,562 97 210535
Note: BIsE
(@) Unrecognised revenue represents the amounts of the sale (a) RERWAEBBEAREETHKIEZD K

transactions, with respect to that the Group transferred the title of
certain properties to customers upon receipt of partial payments,
have not received or related receivables are not reasonably
asserted. Enterprise income tax has been provided for based on
the full contractual amount of the related sales transactions and in
accordance with relevant rules and regulations even though a part
of the sales considerations has not been recorded as revenue. As
such, a deferred income tax asset has arisen from the provision for
such enterprise income tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk Y5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE=ZT—MF=A=+—HIEFE

25. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred
income tax assets and liabilities have been offset in accordance
with conditions set out in HKAS 12. The following is the analysis of
the deferred income taxation for financial reporting purposes:

5. IEEFTSH ()

REJBEERBARME A TREMRRF
MEERARBEREFBGTERF 12
SRR IRIT L H - LSRR B 2R
EFFEHOMET

The Group
TEH

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
THBxT FHETT
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTISH B G 213,602 171,968
Deferred income tax assets LTS E E (3,067) (1,695)
210,535 170,273

At 31 March 2014, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$26,101,000 (2013: HK$24,689,000) available for offsetting
against future profits. No deferred income tax asset has been
recognised with respect to the total of HK$26,101,000 (2013:
HK$24,689,000) due to unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax
losses of HK$25,472,000 (2013: HK$24,296,000) have no expiry date
while the remaining tax losses of HK$629,000 (2013: HK$393,000)
will be expired in five years after the relevant accounting year end
date.

MN2014%3A31H - &K £ =]
26,101,000 7T (20134 : 24,689,000 7
TC) Al AERSE R T 2 R E AT IA
B8 - AR EETER KR K & FIRIR -
Hd E pt A& $£26,101,0007% 7T (2013
F 1 24,689,000 70 ) ERIBELEFTBHE
7 o B 1A E518 25,472,000 7T (2013 4 -
24,296,000 7T) I fEm B HA - ek T
TR T8 JE5 18 629,0007%8 7T (2013 £F = 393,000
B BN EESTFEAERERRAFA
[E R

RAEBBRARIAF « —F—MFEFH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ2—T—NFE=A=+—HILFE

26. INVENTORIES 26. &
The Group
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Raw materials [ER R 23,327 21,042
Work in progress TEESE 7,509 26,843
Finished goods B & 47,446 28,886
78,282 76,771
During the year, the Group provided for inventory obsolescence TR AEEBEEHBRFE,357,000%
of HK$1,357,000 (2013: reversed provision of HK$3,636,000). Such TC (2013 4F : 450l 8 3,636,000/ T ) °
provision has been included in cost of sales in the consolidated WEBEBEELAGZEREZR ZHEHERAN
income statement. =a
27. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 27. HEHEZRIYE
The Group’s interest in completed properties held for sale at their REBNFELEZ BT YED 2 S
net book values are analysed as follows: REBEEIFEITAT ¢
The Group
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Land and buildings situated in the PRC frpe e B B AT EA R 10 = 50 4F
held under leases of between 10 ZHRAFHz L RET
and 50 years 156,125 172,273
Land and buildings situated in the PRC P B B AR HA A B 16 50 F
held under leases of over 50 years ZHOFE 2 LW RIEF 30,166 36,567
186,291 208,840
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=F—NFE=A=+—HItFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

28. EWE R H it FE U BR =X

2014 2013

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade receivables FEWE R 76,001 79,877

Less: provision for impairment of W BN E FURE R

trade receivables (14,764) (21,537)

Trade receivables — net FEWE R — F58 61,237 58,340
Deposits, prepayments and e FENFIE R E M ERERSK

other receivables 42,339 90,158

103,576 148,498

The Group grants an average credit period of 60 days to its
customers. The carrying amounts of the trade and other
receivables approximate to their fair values as these financial
assets, which are measured at amortised cost, are expected to be
paid within a short period of time, such that the impact of the time
value of money is not significant.

At each balance sheet date, the recoverability of the Group’s trade
receivables due from individual customers are assessed based
on the credit history of its customers, their financial conditions
and current market conditions. Consequently, specific impairment
provision is recognised.

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other receivables
are denominated in the following currencies:

AEEGTEEPZ2EEHMFA R0
B e JE WS TR N E A W R R A BR T (E
HEEANRERE  WIARKEUHE
ERBEKAGE AHREHAX
ff BUBERNEERHEETE -

REGEER  ARERKEETF ZE
WERAWEERRETERP ZERR

8% - MR N B BT

REE - B2

R A BRI ERE -

AN ER B 2 FEWUE R B E At R M AR R 2 B
EEATI S, REA

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Renminbi ARHE 30,445 78,255
United States dollar = 53,669 55,245
Hong Kong dollar BT 19,040 14,816
Others H At 422 182
103,576 148,498

The Group has provided fully for all receivables where recovery
of the amounts is remote, unless the Group has determined
that such balances are not recoverable, in which case the
impairment loss is directly written off against the corresponding
trade receivables. Based on past experience and the Group’s
assessment, management believes that no impairment provision
is necessary in respect of the remaining balances as there had not
been a significant change in credit quality of such receivables and
the balances are considered fully recoverable.

ARG 7 P IR O B A B T A T R PR
REEBEE  RIFAKERBUFTER
AR E - ERBERT O RESEKE
B EARFE R M E N - RIBBEER
RASBNFG  EEEREHARS

THRBELRERE  LWHARZEFRE
WEREEERYESEAEE  BZF

RERRRR SR 2B E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Y5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ2—T—NFE=A=+—HILFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

28. BB R KR E M EWAR (&)

N E TR EREZSHIT

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FH&TT

At beginning of the year REFE] 21,537 29,060
Reversal of provision for impairment SR (B IS 18 1 45 o)

losses (6,797) (3,763)

Amounts written off as uncollectible AU B B0RE 2 AR - (3,760)

Exchange differences BE 3 2= %E 24 _

At end of the year RER 14,764 21,537

Included in trade and other receivables of the Group are trade
receivables of HK$76,001,000 (2013: HK$79,877,000) and their
ageing analysis based on due date is as follows:

FEARSE 2 B UWCE 3% H Ath FE UK BR 3R
2 FE U & 5K 576,001,000 7T (2013 4F -
79,877,000 7T) © WERFBEIAA
2RI

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Not past due 42 360 HA 17,344 18,695
1to 60 days past due w1 = 60K 31,143 24,651
61 to 120 days past due ‘61 E 120K 8,464 5,507
More than 120 days past due BHEF120 KA | 19,050 31,024
76,001 79,877

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk Y5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE=ZT—MF=A=+—HIEFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

As of 31 March 2014, trade receivables of HK$43,893,000 (2013:
HK$39,645,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate
to a number of independent customers for whom there is no
recent history of default. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment provision is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality of these receivables and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is
as follows:

28.

B E MR H AR AR (&)

MR2014%E3/831H: & W & =&
43,893,000 7T (20134 : 39,645,000
TL) BB EERRE - L ERKERER
ETBEURFAR mESoETEE
Hsk - BEAGLR  TEEMERED
AR TABRIELRAERE AR
ZERKEREEERTEERNEE) -
BZEEH#DEGE A 2EUE - 1
FERE R Z BREE DATIA T -

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

110 60 days past due WE1 ZE 60K 31,143 24,651
6110 120 days past due BHI61 = 120K 7,767 3,489
More than 120 days past due #H 120 KA E 4,983 11,505
43,893 39,645

As of 31 March 2014, trade receivables of HK$14,764,000 (2013:
HK$21,537,000) were impaired and provided for. The individually
impaired receivables mainly relate to customers which are in
unexpectedly difficult economic situations. The ageing analysis of
these receivables is as follows:

MR2014F3 8318 & W & &
14,764,000 7T (20134 : 21,537,000/
D) BEREREE - BRIERERKE
REZHEBRTER ZIIMEOERR 2 TP
B - WEBRRZERITAT

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

91 to 120 days past due BHI9 = 120K 697 2,018
More than 120 days past due BHI120 KA £ 14,067 19,519
14,764 21,537
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ2—T—NFE=A=+—HILFE

29. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 29. BREREAALEYERZHE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE
The Group The Company
FEH AT
2014 2013 2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHIT FHET FHIT
Trading securities, at BHEE - HRME:
market value:
Listed equity investments in BB LMREKRE
Hong Kong 21,775 28,396 - 720
The fair values of the listed equity investments have been FTTREREZ ANBIHZ2BRERS
determined directly by reference to published price quotations in SERMZREEEET °
active markets.
30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 30. RERERRE
The Group The Company
AEE ¥ /N
2014 2013 2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FHIT
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRNIR 339,170 435,308 1,704 1,294
Time deposits TEBIE K 53,185 5,462 - =
392,355 440,770 1,704 1,294
The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents B4 RERBS2EmEREARER
approximate to their fair values. The carrying amounts of cash and Ho-REKERBESZEEREBEUTIE
cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies: WA BT
The Group The Company
TEE PN
2014 2013 2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHIT FHET FAT
Renminbi AR 229,751 252,204 - -
United States dollar E7T 97,139 93,334 30 30
Hong Kong dollar BT 62,645 91,012 1,674 1,264
Others Hib 2,820 4,220 - =
392,355 440,770 1,704 1,294
The periods of time deposits approximately range from 1 month THERHEOA—BEAZEMM@EA T
to 2 months and they carry interest at short-term deposit rates of % WIREN1EQOIE : ER1E)Z
below 1% (2013: below 1%). RAGFRFIRETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE=ZT—MF=A=+—HIEFE

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31.

(CONTINUED)

The conversion of RMB-denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are subject
to relevant rules and regulation of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

30. REREFEERRE (A)

A R 45 8 51 HR  HNEE 36 B itk S
BRITHEB MRS AETPEBAHIE
HSINE & il 2 AR BE AR BIALEAR -

31. ENERREMEMIRK

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Trade payables FERER 6,586 8,413
Loans from minority shareholders (note) REPBRE 2 G () 86,938 96,716
Advance receipts from customers T P RIE 94,173 68,567
Other accruals and other payables HmpEat B8 m REmEARR 220,797 214,015
408,494 387,711

Note: The loans from minority shareholders are interest-free, unsecured
and have no fixed repayment terms.

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on due date is as
follows:

M. REPBERRZERARE  EER

BN EFREZ B ZREDITIT

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

0 to 60 days past due BWHEI0O = 60K 6,227 6,753
61 t0 120 days past due BHI61 = 120K 50 480
More than 120 days past due #HEF 120 RIA E 309 1,180
6,586 8,413

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate to
their fair values. The carrying amounts of trade and other payables
are denominated in the following currencies:

ENERREMEMN R REERER
RAERE - BANERREMEMRX
ZEREENTIEE SEN -

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Renminbi AR 294,576 231,591
United States dollar xETT 9,533 14,387
Hong Kong dollar BT 104,385 141,593
Others Hi - 140
408,494 387,711
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

55 W R M
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ2—T—NFE=A=+—HILFE
32. BORROWINGS 32. &8
The Group
KEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Current BN HA
Bank borrowings (Note (a)) WITEE (MH3E@) 87,600 180,000
Other loan (Note (b)) H B (D) 37,800 36,900
125,400 216,900
Non-current JEENHA
Bank borrowings (Note (a)) RITEE (K@) 100,000 -
Other loan (Note (b)) HaE R (D) 75,600 110,700
175,600 110,700
Total borrowings BEg 301,000 327,600

The maturity of the above borrowings is as follows:

BREEREAMT

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FH&T

Within 1 year 1R 125,400 76,900
Between 1 and 2 years 122K 137,800 76,900
Between 2 and 5 years 2B5FNRN 37,800 173,800
301,000 327,600

(a) Bank borrowings

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s bank borrowings of
HK$140,000,000 (2013: HK$180,000,000) and HK$47,600,000
(2013: Nil) were secured by an investment property located
in Hong Kong and a leasehold land and building located in
Hong Kong with carrying amount of HK$122,000,000 (2013:
HK$110,800,000) and HK$91,000,000 (2013: Nil), respectively,
and the Company'’s corporate guarantee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk Y5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=F—NFE=A=+—HItFE

32. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Bank borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 March 2014, HK$47,600,000 of the total borrowings
is classified as current liabilities because the related loan
agreement contains a repayment on demand clause which
gives the lender the unconditional right to call the loan at any
time. This bank borrowing will mature in December 2018.

As at 31 March 2013, HK$180,000,000 of the total borrowings
was classified as current liabilities because the related loan
agreement contained a repayment on demand clause which
gave the lender the unconditional right to call the loan at any
time. In the current year, the clause of this bank borrowing
was removed. Hence, as at 31 March 2014, HK$40,000,000
of this borrowing (2012: HK$180,000,000) which is repayable
within 12 months from the year end date, is classified
as current liabilities, whilst the remaining borrowing of
HK100,000,000 (2012: Nil) is classified as non-current
liabilities.

The carrying amount of bank borrowings approximates to its
fair value. The bank borrowings are carried at HIBOR+2.5%
and HIBOR+1.9% (2013: HIBOR +2%) per annum.

Other loan

The Group entered into a fund arrangement with a financial
institution (the “Trustee”). Pursuant to this fund arrangement,
the Trustee raised a trust fund totaling RMB150,000,000
(approximately equivalents to HK$189,000,000) and advance
the whole amount to the Group to finance property
development projects in relation to China Pearl & Jewellery
City. The loan is subject to daily interests at 1.3 times of the
People’s Bank of China 3 to 5 years interest rate and which
is subject to the review in each stipulated repayment period.
The fund arrangement is recognised as other loan and will
mature in June 2016.

As at 31 March 2014, the carrying amount of other loan of
HK$113,400,000 (2013: HK$147,600,000), denominated in
RMB, is subject to an effective interest rate of 8.8% (2013:
8.9%) per annum.

The other loan was secured by certain investment properties
located in the PRC with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$330,962,000 (2013: HK$300,115,000).
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. k&
Number of shares Share capital
BROEE A
2014 2013 2014 2013
‘000 ‘000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
F A& A% F#&xT FHIT
Authorised: VERE
Shares of HK$0.10 each SR MEEOC10ETT
Z & 5,000,000 5,000,000 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRER :
At beginning of the year REH] 1,280,190 1,264,340 128,019 126,434
Issue of new shares upon TR R BT
exercise of share options A% - 15,850 - 1,585
At end of the year RER 1,280,190 1,280,190 128,019 128,019

34. IR AREEZNRK
(@ MAEERERESREE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

(a) Share options granted to employees and

directors of the Group
Share Option Scheme
The 2002 Scheme

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 2
August 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) was expired on 1 August
2012. Thereafter, no further options would be granted
under the 2002 Scheme but the subsisting options granted
thereunder prior to the expiry date will continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the terms of the 2002
Scheme.

The purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to provide incentives
to the eligible participants to contribute to the Group and
to enable the Group to recruit high-caliber employees and
attract resources that are valuable to the Group. Under the
2002 Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may
grant options to any person being an employee, officer,
agent, or consultant of the Group including executive or non-
executive directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price to be
determined by the board of directors being the highest of
(a) the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant of the option, which must be a trading
day, (b) the average closing price of the shares of the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and (c) the nominal value of
the shares.
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By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=F—NFE=A=+—HItFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED) 34. LR ABEEZFR(E)

(a) Share options granted to employees and (@) IXREEEEREERLE

directors of the Group (Continued)
Share Option Scheme (Continued)
The 2002 Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which the 2002
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the number of shares
in issue at the date of adoption of the 2002 Scheme or
such number of shares as a result from a sub-division or
consolidation of the number of shares at that date. Subject
to as provided in the 2002 Scheme, the Company may seek
approval from its shareholders in general meeting to refresh
this 10% limit, but the total number of shares which may be
issued under the 2002 Scheme must not exceed 30% of the
number of shares in issue from time to time.

No participant shall be granted an option which, if accepted
and exercised in full, would result in the participant
becoming entitled to subscribe for such number of shares
as, when aggregated with the total number of shares already
issued and which may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to him, together with all options
granted and to be granted to him under any other share
option schemes of the Company and/or any subsidiaries,
within the 12-month period immediately preceding the
proposed date of grant (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options), would exceed 1% of the number of
shares in issue as at the proposed date of grant.

The 2002 Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing 2 August 2002.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date
of grant upon payment of HK$1 for each grant of options.
Subject to as provided in the 2002 Scheme, options may
be exercised at any time during the option period, which
is to be notified by the board of directors to each grantee,
commencing on the date of grant or such later date as the
board of directors may decide and expiring on such date as
the board of directors may determine, provided that such
period is not to exceed ten years from the date of grant, and
subject to any restrictions that may be imposed by the board
of directors in its discretion.

Details of the principal terms of the 2002 Scheme are set out
in the circular of the Company dated 4 July 2002.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ2—T—NFE=A=+—HILFE

~ 3 = =
34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED) 34. RO AREEZ IR (E)
(@) Share options granted to employees and (@) MAKEEREERESERLEE
directors of the Group (Continued) B AE (&)
Share Option Scheme (Continued) L (N6 )
The 2002 Scheme (Continued) 2002 Fi1 & (&
The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share TREBEEFANEE LIEE 2002
options held by directors and employees under the 2002 FHEITHE 2NN A B M H
Scheme and movements in such holdings during the year. EHENFEE o
Number of Number of Number of
share share share
options options options
outstanding outstanding outstanding
Exercise  at31March Forfeited/  at31March  at31March
Date of grant Exercisable period price 2012 Exercised Lapsed 2013 2014
R2012% R2013% R201E
38318 3A318 38318
HATE HATE BRI
ZBRE eh®/ ZBRE ZBRE
REAS i< iy 3| #A gfif %% #A #A
HKS)
(#7)
Directors Bz
2May 2006 N85S A28 2May 2006 to N6E5R2AE
1 May 2012 1255818 0.253 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - - -
1 September 2009 A9%9518 1 September 2009 to A059F18%
31 August 2012 12588318 0450 8,000,000 (8,000,000) - - -
20 September 2011 V1195208 20 September 2011 to NMEIFNAE
19 September 2016 016595198 0630 12,353,902 = (12:353902) - -
2353902 (9,000,000) (12,353900) - -
Employees L]
2May 2006 N85S A28 2May 2006 to N6E5R2AZ
1 May 2012 11245518 0.253 = = = = =
18 September 2006 206595188 18 September 2006 to 06595 18HZ
17 September 2011 A1ME95178 0233 - - - - -
13Match 2007 NOTE3R 138 1 January 2008 to NBEIR1AZ
12 March 2012 112435128 0,500 = = = = =
27 August 2009 NVESATE 27 August 2009 to NWESAVBE
26 August 2012 N1258F2%A 0397 8,600,000 6,850,000/ (1,750,000) - -
2March 2012 NE3F2M 2March 201210 N1EIR2AZ
1 March 2017 A17%3R18 0610 3,000,000 = = 3,000,000 3,000,000
11,600,000 (6,850,000) (1,750,000) 3000000 3000000
32.953,902 (15,850,000) (14,103902) 3,000,000 3,000,000
Options vested at end of year RERCRRBRE 2,717,967 1,000,000 2,000,000
Weight average exercise price MEFSTEE HKS0512787 HKS0.61 7T HKS0.617% 7
Weighted average exercise EEBBRE e
price of options vested THfTEE HKS0.454 87T HKS0.61 55 HKS06175 7

Weighted average remaining METHHE
contractual fe ROFR 234yearsF 392 years & 292years
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=F—NFE=A=+—HItFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED) 34. LR ABEEZFR(E)

(a) Share options granted to employees and (@) IXREEEEREERLE

directors of the Group (Continued)
Share Option Scheme (Continued)
The 2002 Scheme (Continued)

During the year, no option (2013: 15,850,000 options) were
exercised and no options (2013: 14,103,902 options) were
forfeited or lapsed. For the year ended 31 March 2013, the
weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the dates on which share options were
exercised was HK$0.505.

The 2012 Scheme

On 17 August 2012, the Company adopted the 2012 share
option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”) under which the
directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
persons to subscribe for the Company’s shares subject
to the terms and conditions as stipulated therein. Unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2012 Scheme will
remain valid for a period of 10 years from the adoption date.

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to provide incentives
to the eligible participants to contribute to the Group and
to enable the Group to recruit high-caliber employees and
attract resources that are valuable to the Group. Under the
2012 Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may
grant options to any person being an employee, officer,
agent, or consultant of the Group including executive or non-
executive directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price to be
determined by the board of directors being the highest of
(a) the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant of the option, which must be a trading
day; (b) the average closing price of the shares of the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and (c) the nominal value of
the shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 H#E=—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED)

(@) Share options granted to employees and

directors of the Group (Continued)
Share Option Scheme (Continued)
The 2012 Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which the 2012
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the number of shares
in issue at the date of adoption of the 2012 Scheme or
such number of shares as a result from a sub-division or
consolidation of the number of shares at that date. Subject
to as provided in the 2012 Scheme, the Company may seek
approval from its shareholders in general meeting to refresh
this 10% limit, but the total number of shares which may be
issued under the 2012 Scheme must not exceed 30% of the
number of shares in issue from time to time.

No participant shall be granted an option which, if accepted
and exercised in full, would result in the participant
becoming entitled to subscribe for such number of shares
as, when aggregated with the total number of shares already
issued and which may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to him, together with all options
granted and to be granted to him under any other share
option schemes of the Company and/or any subsidiaries,
within the 12-month period immediately preceding the
proposed date of grant (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options), would exceed 1% of the number of
shares in issue as at the proposed date of grant.

The 2012 Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing 17 August 2012.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date
of grant upon payment of HK$1 for each grant of options.
Subject to as provided in the 2012 Scheme, options may
be exercised at any time during the option period, which
is to be notified by the board of directors to each grantee,
commencing on the date of grant or such later date as the
board of directors may decide and expiring on such date as
the board of directors may determine, provided that such
period is not to exceed ten years from the date of grant, and
subject to any restrictions that may be imposed by the board
of directors in its discretion.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE=ZT—MF=A=+—HIEFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Share options granted to employees and
directors of the Group (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)
The 2012 Scheme (Continued)

Details of the principal terms of the 2012 Scheme are set out
in the circular of the Company dated 6 July 2012.

During the year, no share options have been granted by the
Company under the 2012 Scheme.

Share options granted to a consultant

On 23 August 2011, the Company entered into a consultancy
services agreement (the “Consultancy Services Agreement”)
with Magical Asia Capital Limited (the “Consultant”), an
independent third party, where the Consultant agreed to
provide the following services to the Company: (i) advise and
assist the Group in seeking and identifying an appropriate
target company for the strategic co-operation in the
development of micro credit businesses; (i) assist the Group
in seeking and identifying a senior executive with appropriate
experience and reputation in the financial sector; and (iii)
perform such other duties as may be mutually agreed (if
any).

In consideration of the provision of the services by the
Consultant, the Company agreed to grant option to the
Consultant to subscribe for 49,415,608 shares of the
Company (the “Consultant Option”), representing 4% of the
issued share capital of the Company on the date of grant of
the Consultant Option as service fee paid to the Consultant.
The exercise price of the Consultant Option was fixed at
HK$0.515 per share. The Consultant Option was vested on
the date of grant and is exercisable in whole or in part at any
time within five years from 20 September 2011.

No Consultant Option was exercised or lapsed during the
year.

Fair values of share options and
assumptions

During the year, employee share option expense of
HK$171,000 (2013: HK$379,000) was recognised in the
consolidated income statement in relation to share options
granted by the Company.
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35. RESERVES — THE COMPANY

35. fdfe — A2 H

(Accumulated
losses)/
Share  Contributed  Share option Retained
The Company O premium surplus reserve earnings Total
(BitER)/
Bfp e ARG BRERE RERF ft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T THL T
At 1 April 2012 R2012E£4 518 333,707 59,005 16,021 329,804 738,537
Issue of new shares upon exercise  17{E R R H1THR

of share options 4,987 - - - 4,987
Interim and special dividends RE RIS (3 17)

(note 17) = - - (204,330) (204,330)
Final and special dividends RELEAIRE (FEE17)

(note 17) — (59,005) - (222,637) (281,642)
Share option benefits BIRERER = = 379 = 379
Profit for the year TEEEHN = - - 146,120 146,120
Transferred to share premium TEBRES SR

Upon exercise of share options RiDRE 3,185 - (3,185) - -
Transferred to retained earnings BIRERMEEEA

Upon lapse of share options REEF = = (1,489) 1,488 -
At 31 March 2013 R2013£3A31A 341,879 - 11,727 49,945 403,551
Final dividends (note 17) RERE (3E17) = = - (25,604) (25,604)
Share option benefits B A - - 7 - 17
Loss for the year AEEER - - - (2,505) (2,505)
At 31 March 2014 2014538 31H 341,879 - 11,898 21,836 375,613

BARRTDWENB AR ZEERRE
T EN1997 FRAREAR AR A RUKE
PRETTIRINEEME 2 5 -

Contributed surplus represents the difference between the
consolidated shareholders’ funds of the subsidiaries acquired
and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the corporate reorganisation in 1997.

REBBAREZIVIFRAE  NARZH
ABBRRAME DR - HETIER TA
RETAIEIRSIRTE - KIEBAR

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed
surplus account of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make

a distribution out of contributed surplus if: BRAR{EH DK
(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its (@ 2ARIRAENTIKEEEN(EED E

liabilities as they become due; or B B

REIZABREEELINERAE
B EITIA M a (B Rk 2 48 A0 -

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than (b)
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium account.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE=ZT—MF=A=+—HIEFE

36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had pledged the investment
properties and leasehold building of HK$543,962,000 (2013:
HK$442,526,000) to banks or financial institutions to secure
banking facilities and other loan granted to the Group.

The Company did not have any pledge of assets as at 31 March

2013 (2013: Nil).

36. EEHRM

REER AEEEKFREDER
T E ¥ ¥543,962,0005# 7T (20134 :
442,526,000% 7T ) & B T R 17 ok B 75
B EEAEEERBTHEREERE
REMERZER -

R2014F3A31H » RARWEEME
IR 2 BE (20134 - &) o

37. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 37. B #% W as A RR AR
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FaT FET
Finance income B 5 U 2
Interest income on short-term S HASR 1717 3R B s
bank deposits 2,292 4,037
Other interest income HF B U as 2,785 11,092
5,077 15,129
Finance costs EURID RN
Interest expenses on borrowings BEEMNEMAX (14,661) (17,380)
Amount capitalised on qualifying assets EERBEEZERNLEE 9,729 2,130
(4,932) (15,250)
Finance income/(costs) — net Bl ss (BAR) — 548 145 (121)
38. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 38. EAXKIE
The Group
KEHE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
F@xT FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not 2 ET#BE R ARG E IR &
provided for in the consolidated BBz EARRMX
financial statements:
Construction of property and land ERYEMBE
acquisition 108,769 25,821
Purchase of property, BEYE  BEM&E
plant and equipment 770 770
109,539 26,591

The Company did not have any significant capital commitments as

at 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil).

MR20143 8318 » AR AW ETFE
KERAEYE (20134 : 4#) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Y5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ2—T—NFE=A=+—HILFE

39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessee

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had outstanding commitments
for the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

39. KEMHERH
AEBEEREEA

MR2014E3 A31 8 » NEBIZHN T 5 H
ffEm 2 T Al s B E 2 AR KK

operating leases which fall due as follows: MR AFEENT
The Group
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Operating leases which expire: LETHEE AT RREER

Within one year —F R 11,150 8,396
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFRF (BEEEMT) 21,758 12
From fifth years onwards FERFE 20 -
32,928 8,408

Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to five years and
rentals are fixed during the relevant lease period.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$43,481,000
(2013: HK$40,399,000).

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had contracted with tenants for
the following future minimum lease payments receivable under
non-cancellable operating leases:

HOBEFAFEHRA—ELF  MRAE
AESACHE RERESE -

REBEESHEA

FRBREZ Y EH S U A A43,481,000
67T (2013 4F © 40,399,000/ 7T) °

N201463 8318 » "REBEBEIET
AIRGEEEHE 2T IR R 2R &K
EW0F

The Group
TEH

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Within one year —FR 43,797 35,714
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERF (BEEREWME) 30,936 15,643
74,733 51,362
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=F—NFE=A=+—HItFE

40. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Company issued corporate guarantees to banks in respect of
general banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries. To the extent
of such banking facilities, the borrowing of HK$140,000,000 (2013:
HK$180,000,000) and HK$47,600,000 (2013: Nil) was drawn by two
of its subsidiaries, respectively, as detailed in note 32(a) of these
financial statements.

The Group entered into a mortgage collaboration agreement with a
bank in Mainland China under which the Group agreed to indemnify
the bank for any failure by purchasers of the Group's properties in
CP&J City to repay the borrowings or interest to the bank for the
period before and up to the bank registering the certificates of real
estate ownership as collateral for the borrowings. As at 31 March
2014, the Group has maximum exposure on the guarantees of
HK$27,443,000 (2013: HK$85,294,000).

As at 31 March, 2014, certain investment properties with carrying
amount of RMB23,173,000 (equivalent to HK$29,198,000) (2013:
RMB22,818,000, equivalent to HK$28,066,000) have been pledged
to a PRC bank to secure a loan granted by the PRC bank to an
independent third party.

The directors are of the view that the fair values of these financial
guarantees are not significant.

Save as disclosed above, the Group and the Company had no
other significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2014 (2013:
Nil).

40. B ER

RRARREMBARER 2 —RIR1TH
REERERRTHELQAER - E3
BRSRTHENS  EPmENEARF
% B B =2 B8 7 140,000,000 % 7t (2013
F : 180,000,000/ 7T ) #147,600,000 %
7(2013 : &) @ FHIFEN M B HmKR M T
32(a) °

AEBEPRRKE-—RIFTRIIZBE
i - Bl - NEBRERZRITE
HRERE WK BEEREERE R
MEBRREERTELEEBIES
BEEERAR A REBMEEEEE
g F B - RImRITE L WE - 722014
F3A3NHB AEEEARFLEAR
27,443,0007% 7T (20134 : 85,294,000
JL) °

M2014E3A31MB REME AR
23,173,000 7¢ ( 48 & 129,198,000 JT )
(2013: A R #22818000° # & »
28,066,000 70) A TR EMEE KA
F - EET  UIEZTEETR
F—EZBIEZTER

EERR/UFHMBRRZIAANELAE
k o

B EXPIREEIN  AERERAAFR

2014F3A3MHTEEMERKAAE
(20134 : £&) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE—ZT—NE=A=+—HILFE

41. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING BEFEEREZNRS

INTERESTS
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary

On 18 February 2014, the Group completed an acquisition of
an additional 3.85% of the issued shares of China Pearls and
Jewellery City Holdings Limited (“CPJ HK") at a consideration
of HK$17,300,000. The carrying amount of the non-controlling
interests in CPJ HK on the date of acquisition was HK$26,538,000.
The Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of
HK$16,759,000 and an increase in equity attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$9,238,000.

On 3 January 2013, the Group completed an acquisition of an
additional 7% of the issued shares of CPJ HK at a consideration
of HK$28,400,000. The carrying amount of the non-controlling
interests in CPJ HK on the date of acquisition was HK$42,748,000.
The Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of
HK$24,969,000 and an increase in equity attributable to owners
of the Company of HK$14,348,000. The effect of changes in the
ownership interest of CPJ HK on the equity attributable to owners
of the Company during the year is summarised as follows:

L B B B 2 R BV BB S P 5

J‘5A2014¢2H18E| R B SE R R BE

HEBHREHIERER AR ([P HEE
%%?m)%éiﬁl\ass%aé'éﬁﬁﬁfﬁ BB
R 1B A17,300,0007% 7T P UL EE B HA -
FEEEGRENNIFERERRAEAR
26,538,000 T © AN & B 1 R IE 1 AR
258 16,759,000 ¢ © M AR B HEA
AFE(E 2512 419,238,000/8 7T °

R2013F 1 A3H  AEE T WEF
B BREWREIN% D BITRD  EE
(& /528,400,000 7T » F Uk BE B A -
PRAEBKRE R EREEES
42,748,000 T ° 7N 5 B W AR JE 15 AR A
= 424,969,000/ 0 0 AR BIEA
AFE(RHEZSIE /N 14,348,000 7T < A -
EPIQ%%I%%?%MT;&%M&EEEJJ‘;MW
NEEE ANEOESAORZER T

As at 31 March

MR3A31H
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Carrying amount of non-controlling T B R AR P 2 BR TED 1
interests acquired 26,538 42,748
Consideration paid to non-controlling ST IHEERERNRE
interests (17,300) (28,400)
Excess of consideration paid recognised REZNERNEMBERE
within equity 9,238 14,348

Effects of transactions with non-controlling interests on the equity
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
March:

BRSO ZHARREEIA
BB LLFERE AREERNTE

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Total comprehensive income for the period A REHB AFE(LEIR
attributable to owners of the Company EER B 80,737 57,691
Changes in equity attributable to owners  YtBEHi B A B EBIMERE LR
of the Company arising from acquisition RAREEANEEEREH
of additional interests in subsidiary 9,238 14,348
89,975 72,039
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE=ZT—MF=A=+—HIEFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. BEAETRS
(@) Key management compensation (@) FEEE AR ZEHH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Salaries, wages and other benefits He - TEREMER 10,009 11,136
Pension costs-defined contribution BEESHEIGTE R
plans and social security costs HERBAA 60 53
Share options expenses BB A RER S 171 379
10,240 11,568
(b) The Group entered into the following (b) mEBEETUTEKRBEEA
material related party transactions, which TR MERZIREE
were carried out in the ordinary course of B —MREKBEDET-
the Group’s business.
2014 2013
Related party relationship Nature of transaction HK$'000 HK$'000
BEALEE TEMHE FER FAT
An entity which is significantly Reimbursement of rental charges
influenced by a key management paid on behalf
personnel of the Company
AAREBEBABYHHES WEIRZ Mz &
EAFEN2ER 1,902 1,828
Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, BRINARE IR T BB E SN - I
there were no other significant related party transactions. BHMBERNBEALTRS °
43. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 43. BRARERIFE
The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme REBAMEEESEKEBZ NG
(“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The MAEeFE ([RESFTE]) - BES
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the STl EERBYERAMESESHE
Group, in funds under the control of an independent trustee. 5 THASEZEESRAFE - A%
The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF BB err el N o BB EAB B
Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees. The B A 2 5% - BB B AT A& MR o
monthly contributions of each of the employer and the employee UEEMEX BB HRERAEE A
are subject to a cap of HK$1,250 and thereafter contributions are 1,25087C - BBt SN A B REMHRK -
voluntary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 H#E=—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

43.

44,

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
(CONTINUED)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefits scheme being
operated by the local PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute 10% to 15% of the average basic salary
to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement
of HK$7,416,000 (2013: HK$3,801,000) represents contributions
payable to these schemes by the Group in respect of the current
accounting period.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The list below gives the particulars of principal subsidiaries of
the Group which, in opinion of the directors, principally affect the
operating results and net assets of the Group. To give full details
of subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

43.

44.

RIABRIFE (&)

AEETEBEANMB AR ZEESHT
B R 2 B R B IR AR KR MR
B 2B - BHIEB A RZAREKERE
XN FHERAHE Z10%E15% " &
BRABHNREHES - RRAKEHNEEIM
5 AKEZE-EERSMNEEMRR -

EZARaERPNMBRZEKER
7,416,000 7T (20134 : 3,801,000%
L) RAKERAERHIEAR LA
SEHZ K -

FEMBRARESR

TR EEA/HAREREERER
BEFEAEAFEZASETIENE
RAZHF - BERA  #FHIMBRA
E2HEHCREBNITE

Name of subsidiary Place of Nominal value Percentage  Principal activities
MEAREE establishment/ of issued ofequity ETEEXK
principal place of share capital/ attributable
operations registered capital to the Group
oLy BET (note 1)
TELEHY RAEE r5E
AMmER LR
(HizE1)
Arcadia Jewellery Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100%  Trading and manufacturing
EELRMARRA o HK$500,000 of jewellery products
gl BERBEREER
500,000 7T
China Pearls and Jewellery PRC Registered capital 65.85%  Property development and
International City Co. Ltd. H US$30,000,000 investment
(note 3) ZMER MEBRRREYHE
HEERERKENERAA 30,000,000 7T
(PtzE3)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=F—NFE=A=+—HItFE

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

44. TEMBE LR ER (F)

(CONTINUED)
Name of subsidiary Place of Nominal value Percentage  Principal activities
MEARERE establishment/ of issued ofequity FEEH
principal place of share capital/ attributable
operations registered capital to the Group
R, 2ET (note 1)
TERE Y RAEE/ S |
HEfER EEREEE S
GEXY
Man Hing Industry PRC Registered capital 100%  Purchasing and processing
Development (Shenzhen) H HK$29,600,000 of pearls and assembling
Co., Ltd. (note 3) A AR of pearl jewellery and
REABEER (R BRAF 29,600,000 7 property investment
(F5E3) RERNIZHEGE
BHRARMERE
Man Sang Innovations Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 100%  Trademark holding
REBIRBBAH o HK$5,000 RARR
LEA 5,000 7T
Man Sang Jewellery Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 100%  Trading of pearl products
Limited Bk HK$500 and investment holding
REKEEBRAA Deferred share PRERE S RIZEER
HK$500 (note 2)
TR 50078 7T

Man Sang Jewellery (Hong Kong)

Limited (note 4)
REKE (BB)ERAA
G

Market Leader Technology
Limited

Swift Millions Limited
2RARANA

EELKRE ORI BRLQA
(notes 3 & 4)
(fizE3 & 4)

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
EBELEE/

Hong Kong
BB

PRC
i

JEFERR £ 500 T
(FtaE2)

Ordinary HK$1
LR

Ordinary
US$100
LB 100ETT

Ordinary
HK$5,000
T3/ 5,000 7T

Registered capital
US$2,000,000
2,000,000 7T

100%  Trading of pearl products
VHERES

100%  Investment holding and
trading of equity securities
REBEREBRAZ SRS

100%  Property investment
REM%

100%  Purchasing and processing
of pearls and assembling
of pearl jewellery

FERNIDHKRHSE
#i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ2—T—NFE=A=+—HILFE

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 44. TERB AT ER (&

(CONTINUED)

Notes: MiE

1. The Company directly holds the interests in Man Sang Innovations 1T ADFEERAREAREROAR
Limited and Market Leader Technology Limited. All other interests Market#eaderHTechnglogy leﬁeijz%
shown above are indirectly held by the Company. %ﬁ%iuﬁﬁﬁ“‘rﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ$A Al

2. The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no rights to 2. ﬁﬁg?ﬁ%@ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ%iﬁ@%*ﬂéﬁﬁg
dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general Hxiu\;?‘ﬁlnﬂf’é”&gﬁ{i’rgﬂi g;}ﬁxij(%
meeting of the company or to participate in any distribution on %ﬁm ) EX&FEAKE“;X AAE L
winding up 2 I BREMNRBRMRENE

. 2

3. These companies were registered in the PRC as wholly-owned 3. EFARB/RAEEMZIBEBEEL
foreign enterprises. £

4. These companies were incorporated during the year ended 31 4. %%@E@@“EZOMiSH NBLEF
March 2014. EFMKAL -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AP Y B 4l 2

RESULTS
For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A31BLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT FEL TEL THL
Revenue WA 351,380 461,185 370,236 401,854 339,379
Profit/(Loss) before income tax B FTS MBI F| / (E518) 137,376 112,077 122,209 92,426 (39,557)
Income tax (expense)/credit PR (%) Ee (51,780) (47,810) 42,112) (29,037) 27,200
Profit/(Loss) for the year AEEER/(B8) 85,596 64,267 80,097 63,389 (12,357)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to: EHEEET/(BE) :
Equity holders of the Company ~ AARIRE 68,463 48,244 54,845 55,077 18,523
Non-controlling interests 3 ¢ 17,133 16,023 25,252 8,312 (30,880)
85,596 64,267 80,097 63,389 (12,357)
Dividend per share SEU S
Interim dividend AR 8 1HK cents 3 HK cents 3 HK cents
- 1754l 3L = 3L
Special interim dividend 15 ERRR & 15 HK cents
- 15784 = = =
Proposed final dividend BRR B E 2 HK cents 2 HK cents
- 27 274 = =
Proposed special dividend R AR 2 20 HK cents
- - 207l - -
18 HK cents 25 HK cents 3 HK cents
- 18781l 2571l = 31l
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEREE
At 31 March
RW3A31AH
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT FEL TExT THL
Total assets BEE 2,116,469 2,001,689 2,373,081 2,108,538 2,074,967
Total liabilities RN 1,042,761 998,847 953,811 785,197 861,706
Non-controlling interests FEE R 146,072 139,748 148,694 115,430 95,868
Equity attributable to equity RARREEEER
holders of the Company 927,636 863,094 1,270,576 1,207,911 1,117,393

RAEBBRARRIA « —F—MFEFH



PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

TEYE

Below is a schedule of investment properties held by the Group in Hong

MR2014F3A318 ' AEBURETERFH

Kong and the PRC as at 31 March 2014 ZIRBERET
Location Description and Tenure (note) Use Group's Interest
ith 24 B K 5 58 (Pt =E) k= EEEFEER
Group |
-8
19th Floor, Railway Plaza, No. The gross floor area of the property is Office for lease 100%
39 Chatham Road South, Tsim approximately 1,010.78 square metres.
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(6,000/168,000th equal and The property is held under medium lease.
undivided shares of and in the
Remaining Portion of Kowloon
Inland Lot Nos. 10453 & 7700 and
Kowloon Inland Lot No. 8511)
BN ZYEBEERRE BTIEHEE 100%
R ERF B 395 #11,010.78 K o
BEAE191E
(LEE I ER 58 10453 K 7700 5% & ZMEAFBRENEE -
BEIHIER 8511 SRERER 168,000 7
9% BRI S EIOEH
2.6,00017)
Group Il
-t |
20 blocks of Man Sang Industrial City, The property has a total gross floor area Factories and dwellings 100%
Min Sheng Main Road, Gong Ming of approximately 56,516.93 square for lease
Zhen, Bao An District, Shenzhen, metres.
the PRC
The properties are held under medium
lease.
BRI ZYFBEERRE Ik EFERE 100%

EREARE
EEXBRATEW20EAEZ

#156,516.93 F 77K °

ZYEAPRBEORE -
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

/B
Location Description and Tenure (note) Use Group’s Interest
ith B B R 5 (B ) Jiikes KEBFGER
24 shops/booths of Market Centre of The properties have a total gross floor Commercial booths 100%
Phase I, CP&J City in Shanxiahu area of approximately 11,581.1 square and shops for lease
Town, Zhuji, Zhejiang Province, the metres.
PRC
The properties are held under medium
lease.
HETTA ZENFBEEEE EERN REHEE 100%
AETILTHE £711,581.1F 7K
FERBERIRE N E — 5
RG24 B, ZEMENFHEOREE -
Part of Market Centre of Phase |, The properties have a total gross floor Commercial booths 65.85%
CP&J City in Shanxiahu Town, area of approximately 48,960.6 square and shops for lease
Zhuji, Zhejiang Province, the PRC metres.
The properties are held under medium
lease.
HETTA ZENFBEEEE EERN RAHEE 65.85%
EEMILTHE #)48,960.6 F 77K °
ERBRKEMR
E-—HHNXHTE ZEMENF RS -
Part of factory buildings of Phase |, The property has a total gross floor area Factories for lease 65.85%
CP&J City in Shanxiahu Town, of approximately 22,771.8 square
Zhuji, Zhejiang Province, the PRC metres.
The properties are held under medium
lease.
BT A ZENFBEEEE ITHMEE 65.85%
AEIL TR £922,771.8 F K o
EREBRKRER

F-HEoIE

ZEMEATHROES -
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
ERYE

Location Description and Tenure (note) Use Group’s Interest
o B BT R 5 (B ) Jikes KEBEATLER
Part of composite building of Phase The property has a total gross floor area Commercial building 65.85%
|, CP&J City in Shanxiahu Town, of approximately 21,235.4 square for lease
Zhuji, Zhejiang Province, the PRC metres.
The properties are held under long lease.
HENTE ZEYEEEAER PEEREHE 65.85%
AL TR #121,235.4F 7K o
EREBRKRER
BB RAE ZEMEURPBORFE -
Group 1Nl
=8
Industrial Land, Phase I, CP&/ City, The properties has a total site area of Land under 65.85%
Shanxiahu Town, Zhuji, Zhejiang approximately 26,589.3 square development in
Province, the PRC meters. planning stage
The property is held under medium lease.
BT IS ZEMFBIGHEE B EIRE R 2 65.85%
AL TR #126,589.3F 7K o BRPLH
ERERKRER
FE—HTERM GEMENFHBEORE -
Commercial/residential land, Phase |, The properties have a total site area Land under 65.85%
CP&J City, Shanxiahu Town, Zhuiji, of approximately 18,097.23 square development in
Zhejiang Province, the PRC meters. planning stage
The property is held under long lease.
BT IS ZEMFBGHEE B EIRE R 65.85%
AL TR #118,097.23F 5K ° BRPLH
FERRFIRIREMNE — 5
mE/EER ZEMEURPBORFE -
Notes: BT -

Long lease represents the lease of over 50 years; medium lease represents the

lease of between 10 years and 50 years.

Group | - Investment properties held by the Group in Hong Kong
Group Il - Investment properties held by the Group in the PRC

Group Il - Investment properties under construction held by the Group in the PRC

ZE504 -

Man Sang International Limited e Annual Report 2014

REMAA 2 HHEES0F : AL 2 EBANF10

FH-ARETERBRAZREME
FH-AKEEREKAZREME
F_R-AEBEPERE ERREME



S

Man Sang International Limited

R B B AT R 2



	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	公司簡介
	財務摘要
	2013/2014 年大事摘要
	主席報告
	管理層討論與分析
	董事及高級管理人員履歷
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合收益表
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合資產負債表
	資產負債表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合財務報表附註
	五年財務摘要
	主要物業
	封底

